Local Churches

Assembly of God, 147 S. River St. 1942, 311 S. College St. 1943
Baptist Chapel Mission, 658 W. State St. 1963, now Valley View
Baptist Church, Greyhound Post House, 320 S. Pilling St. 1967
Baptist Church Society. 115 W. Main St. 3rd floor 1901
Baptist, First Baptist Church, first met in the City Hall, 124 W. Church St.
1901, 135 S. River St. 1905, new building 1915, new building 1966
Baptist Society before 1884
Church of Christ, 1901, building 560 W. State St. 1909, Goodrich 1960
Church of God, 658 W. State St. 1966, 301 W. Church St. 1970
Four Square Gospel Church, 1932, building at 315 S. West St. 1937
Lutheran Church, log school house, N. W, corner State & Bridge 1832
Lutheran Church, corner of Neighbor & Bridge brick building, 1838,
Lutheran Church, built wood frame building, 121 S. College, 1869
Lutheran Church, Masonic Lodge 2nd floor, 121 S. College St. built 1869
Lutheran Church, for a time rear used for community college,
this is where College St. got it's name
Lutheran Church, built new brick building, 121 S. College 1906
Methodist, Christ United Methodist Church, 648 Oak St. 1968
Methodist, College St. Methodist Church, 145 E. Canal St. 1939
Methodist, College St. Methodist Church, buys Touraine,
600 N. College St. 1955
Methodist Episcopal Church, 301 W. Church St. organized in 1830, brick
building in 1836, frame building in 1866-67, brick Covering 1915
Methodist Protestant Church, 133 E. Canal St. organized in 1842,
here to 1878, when a new building was built at 145 E. Canal St.
Nazarene Church, Duff Hall 117 S. River St. 1935,
Newcomerstown Churches Page 1
Newcomerstown Churches Page 2
Presbyterian Church, 201 - 205 W. Canal St.
was organized November 13, 1876, built building in 1878
Rodney House, North Bridge St.
Scriptural Holiness Church, 560 W. State St. 1962
They became the Church of Christ in Christian Union
St. Francis De Sales Catholic Church
S. W. Corner of State & Chestnut St. 1918, 446 S. River St. 1938
St. Francis De Sales buys the J. M. Lanning property
at corner of State and River St. 1921
St. Paul's AME Church (American Methodist Episcopal)
551 - 553 Clow Ave. 1920
Trinity Baptist Church, 586 Clow Ave. 1923
Trinity Methodist Church, 301 W. Church St. about 1939
United Brethren Church, 157 W. State St. 1906
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Area Churches
Baptist Church, Newtown (now Peoli) 1830s
Bethel Church of Christ, Bethel Rd.
Birds Run Baptist Church 1845, new building 1870
Birds Run Bible Society, a Methodist Protestant Church 1830s
Birds Run Methodist Episcpoal Church 1839
Birmingham Methodist Church, Birmingham, had been Milnersburg, stone
structure 1839. It relocated to a frame building that was erected in 1871
Bloody Bible, Early's Church 1861
Bridgeville Metdodist Episcopal Church 1898.
It became Birds Run Community Church
Church of Christ met in houses along Buckhorn Creek 1850
Church of Christ, Gilmore
Clear Fork Baptist Church, log structure in Birmingham 1822
then Broadhead Rd. a new frame building about 1842
Countryside Baptist Church, Route 36 east of Newcomerstown
Clear Fork Presbyterian Church
Early's Methodist Episcopal Church, Early Cemetery Rd. & Zion Rd.
log building, 1844, later wood frame building 1874
Everal Chapel, United Brethren, Everal Church Rd. 1868

Full Gospel Temple, used St. Jacob Lutheran Church building 1974

German Lutheran Church, Union Hill, built of logs, around 1820 to 1825,
moved to a site on the Coshocton-Cadiz road, became St. Jacob's Lutheran
Church, built frame building 1868

Glasgow, two churches

Guernsey United Methodist Church 1893

Hartwood Methodist Church, Hartwood Rd.

Irish Ridge Methodist Church, Clary Road

Isleta Methodist Church 1858

Jerusalem Church, Stonecreek, log building built in 1815,
frame building in 1842 and brick building in 1877.

Kings United Methodist Church, about 1855

Methodist Church, Newtown (now Peoli) 1830s

Peoples Community Church, Peoples Church Rd. 1839, new bldg. built 1967

Pleasant Hill Church

Pleasant View Baptist Church, Church Rd. built 1899

United Brethren Centennary Church, Centennary Rd. 1855

United Methodist Church, Birmingham 1839

United Methodist Church also known as the Birds Run Bible Society, log
structure north of Guernsey at the corner County Road 33 (North Eigth
St Road) and Township Road 382 (Zion Rd.) near the Guernsey Cemetery
1830s, The existing building was built in 1893 in Guernsey

Wesley Community Chapel, Chapel Rd.

White Eyes Plains Baptist Church, Cadiz Rd. Isleta

Wolf Methodist Church

Zion M. E. Church, built of logs, a name used for Early's Church (short time)
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Local Schools

Dame School, A private kindergarten, Neighbor St. 1846

East School, Elementary and High School, S. College St.
built 1898, replaced in 1956

High School, 305 W. State St. 1924, later at 659 Beaver St. 1968

Kindergarten classes, school annex behind High School 1951

Kindergarten School, S. Goodrich St. 1954

Kindergarten School, Mrs. Elizabeth Rodgers, behind Post Office,
116 W. Main St. 1934

Middle School, 305 W. State St. after High School
moved to Beaver St. in 1968

Miller, Jacob, son-in-law of Neighbor Neighbor came in 1816 - 1817,
first one room school, north of the river near the county line,
on W. State St. 1818

School, Woods building, 110 E. Canal St. 1924

School Building, one of the first, on lot west of the M. E. Methodist
Church on Church St.

School Building, located about where the Presbyterian Church
is now, early 1850s

School Building, N. Side of State Rd. on the S. side of the
Pioneer Cemetery, about 1820

Stark Patent School, East State Rd.

Stoffer, Jacob, came prior to 1820, early school, two room cabin,
teacher Seth Hart, just above the Nugen Bridge, site became
1140 E. State Rd. east of Pilling St

Union School, College St. 1855

West School, later called Maplewood Elementary,
cor. State & River built in 1899

West School, Elementary, 517 S. Beaver St, 1957

WPA Nursery School, 118 1/2 W. Main St. 1954
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Area Schools

Anderson School, moved to Guernsey 1939

Bethel School, Salem Twp. 1881

Birds Run School, Wheeling Twp. Guernsey Co.

Birds Run High School, only 9th and 10th grades

Booth School, Oxford Twp. new school erected in 1889-90
Browning School, Oxford Twp. south on Route 21

Bunker Hill School, Salem Twp. 1894

Cappel School, Washington Twp. 1839

Centenary School, Salem Twp. 1887

Clear Fork School, Monroe Twp. Guernsey Co.

Everal School, Oxford Twp. Cosh. Co. 1845

Gilmore School, Washington Twp. 1854 - new building in 1885
Glasgow Catholic Church, Salem Twp.

Glasgow School, Salem Twp. 1898

Glenwood School, Salem Twp. 1898

Guernsey School, Wheeling Twp. Guernsey Co.

Hartwood School, Washington Twp. 1901

Haupert School, Salem Twp. 1846

Irish Ridge School, Monroe Twp. Guernsey Co. 1895

Kail School, Salem Twp. 1852

Kings School House, Oxford Twp.

Lick Run School, Salem Twp. 1838

Mansfield Hill School, Salem Twp.

Milnersville School 1904

Mudsock School, Bernice, Washington Twp. 1890
Newtown School (Peoli), Washington Twp. 1835

Pleasant Valley School, Washington Twp. new building in 1852
Pleasant View School, Oxford Twp.

Post Boy School, Oxford Twp. Post Boy Rd.

Sands School, Salem Twp. 1881

Stocker Ridge School, N. W. corner of Stocker Ridge Rd. and Dunlap
Creek Rd. It became Oxford School in 1948, closed in 1954, students

then came to Newcomerstown. Oxford Twp.
Union School, had been called Plains School, Cadiz Rd. Isleta
Wheeling Elementary School, Guernsey Ohio 1956
Wolf School, Salem Twp. 1901
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Assembly of God was started in 1937, they first met in a storeroom. In 1940 they built
a building at 311 S. College St. In 1974 a fellowship hall was added.

Baptist Chapel Mission began in 1963. The group first met in the Powell Building
658 W. Main Street. In 1965 it was incorporated and moved to the Leading Building at
223 W.Main St. The name was changed to Valley View Baptist Church. In 1967 the
Greyhound Post House became available and the congregation decided to purchase this
building. This Church used 320 S. Pilling St. as their address. The Post House had been
402 S. Pilling St.

Baptist - First Baptist Church organized in a home of Isaac Evans in Oxford Township,
Coshocton County, called the White Eyes Plains Church on Nov. 5, 1825. It was a brick
building 30x60 with a slate roof. It was across from the Union one room school, which was
located about three miles west of Newcomerstown. Years after the White Eyes Plains
Church was established, a meeting was held on Sunday, August 26, 1900 to discuss the
possibilities of starting a mission in Newcomerstown. The next Sunday it was reported
that the Town Hall in Newcomerstown would be available for services free of any charge
exept for heat and light. A year later, the White Eyes Plains Church and the Pleasant View
Baptist Church pledged to support the Newcomerstown Mission. The first Sunday School
was established a month after the pledge. A charter was signed in 1902 and the mission
became a Baptist Church. A lot with a small building on it that had been used as a meat
market was purchased. The meat shop was then transformed into a House of Worship,
which served as the First Baptist Church until 1915. A new church building was built on this
lot in 1915 and it was later replaced in 1966.

Baptist - A Baptist society was here prior to 1884.

Baptist - The Trinity Baptist Church was Organized in 1908. The Church building was
located at 586 Clow Ave. In 1923 it was destroyed by fire. In 1925 the building was replaced.
The first chairs used in this church were from the Old Opera House.

Catholic - St. Francis De Sales, established in 1917. They bought property at 449 E. State
St. in 1818 and converted it for use as a church. Later the Lanning house on Goodrich St.
was used. In 1938 a new church building was built at 446 S. River St. Fellowship Hall 1969.

Church of Christ was established in 1901, Building was at 560 W. State St. They built a
new building at 475 S. Goodrich St. in 1960.

Church of God was begun as mission work. It started in Newcomerstown in Jan. 1966 at
the Powell Building at 658 W. State St., which had formerly held another congregation's
meetings, now was used to house the Church of God's services. In 1970 they purchased the
Old Trinity Methodist Church which is located at 301 W. Church St.

Evangelical United Brethren Church met at 117 S. River St. upstairs from 1900 to 1906
before moving to a new building at 157 W. State St. in 1906. In 1946 the Evangelical United
Brethren and the United Brethren Church were merged and became the United Brethren
Church. In 1968 when theUnited Brethren Church united with the Methodist Church. the
congregation elected to stay in their own church building, but renamed the church the
Calvary United Methodist Church.

Four Square Gospel Church began in 1932. It was located in an upstairs room at 117 S.
River St. Later the group moved to Canal St. (the Ortt Building) and then to the Hartly lot
just off State St. In 1937 the present church building was built at 315 S. West St.
and remodeled in 1962
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Lutherans - Evangelical English Lutheran Church first met in a log school house which also
served as a Community Center. They.were founded on Nov. 11, 1832 and stayed until 1838.
This school house was built about 1820 and was located on the south side of the Pioneer
Cemetery. The property for the cemetery and the school had been given to the village by
Andrew Creter. In 1838 they bought property and built a new two story brick building on
Neighbor St. The property was bought from Nicholas Neighbor. Emanuel Greenwald was
the pastor in both locations. John Rodney bought the building in 1869 and changed it into a
dwelling. St. Paul Lutheran Church built a new building at 121 - 123 S. College St. in 1869
It was a two-story frame building. The Masonic Lodge was on the second floor. A new brick
building was built in 1906.

Methodist - St. Paul's African Methodist Episcopal Church was founded in 1920 at 551
Clow Ave. :

Methodist - Christ United Methodist Church. The College St. Methodist Church and
Trinity Methodist Church merged in 1966. The combined congregation then worshiped in
the Trinity Methodist Church building at 301 W. Church St. until the new church complex
at 648 Oak St. was completed in 1969.

Methodist - Methodist Episcopal Church, 301 W. Church St. was organized in 1830, they
met in school houses and homes until 1835. A brick church was built in 1836. In 1866-67 a
new frame structure was built on the old site. In 1916 a new brick building was built. They
merged with the Methodist Protestant Church at 145 E. Canal St. (1939-ML)

Methodist - Methodist Protestant Church was organized in 1842, the first church was built
on the east side of the present Presbyterian Church. New building built at 145 E. Canal St.
in 1878. They merged. with the Methodist Episcopal Church in1939.

They changed their name to College St. Methodist Church. in 1955 the building

was damaged by a tornado. They moved to the Touraine Supper Club building on N.
College St. in 1955. In 1966 they merged with the Trinity Methodist. The property was sold
to the State of Ohio. The building to be removed for Route 36 by-pass (1966-ML)

Methodist - Trinity Methodist Church bought the building at 301 W. Church from the
Methodist Episcopal Church about 1839. In 1970 it was sold to the Church of God.

Presbyterian Church was organized Nov. 13, 1876 and met in the former Methodist
Protestant Church in the frame building on the land now occupied by the Post Office at
133 W. Canal St. until their building was erected in 1878 on its present site. The Manse,
since Feb. 14, 1900, the home of all pastors was purchased from Dr. J. R. McElory and sits
on the property adjacent to the church on the west side.

Nazarene - Church of the Nazarene, established in 1935 and first met in the Duff Hall at
117 S. River St.. Later the group bought a church building in Plainfield, Ohio. They then
moved to 351 W. Neighbor St. In 1943 a new church building was built on the same site.

In 1954 a new and larger building was built. In 1965 a new addition was added after
buying the adjoining property.

Seriptural Holiness Church was formed in 1962. The former Church of Christ building at
560 W. State St. was bought for their use. They became the Church of Christ in Christian
Union. 1. .



Another in a series

- St. Paul Lutheran Chu:

Over the years, St. Paul Evangelical Lutheran
Church has been situated in several locations. Andrew

Creter gave to Newcomerstown an acre of ground, half -

for a burial ground and half for a school. A small frame
school house which served as a community center was

- built on this site. It was here that the Lutherans were
brought together for worship.

Rev. Emanuel Greenwald first held services at the
same school house in 1832 and the first communion on
May 4, 1834. The first six communicants were Judge
Nicholas Neighbor, Sr., William Neighbor, Hannah
Neighbor, Elizabeth Neighbor, Catherine Neighbor
and William Tufford. On May 10, 1835, a permanent
organization, known as St. Paul Evangelical Lutheran
Church of Newcomerstown, was effected. Nicholas
Neighbor and Joshua Gardner were elected elders and
Jacob Miller and Leonard Neighbor were elected dea-
cons.

In a short time after the organization of the church,
steps were taken toward the erection of a house of wor-
ship. With much energy, zeal and sacrifice, the fathers
labored in this direction and as a reward for their labors,

_they had the pleasure of beginning to hold divine ser-
vices in the brick church on Rodney’s Hill (comer of
Neighbor and Bridge streets) under the pastorate of
Rev. Greenwald. This was the first church in New-
comerstown.

In this church was hung the first bell of Newcomer-
stown. The bell was brought to town by a canal boat in
1841. Not only was it used to summon the people to
worship, but it also served as a fire bell and was used to
note the beginning of town council meetings. It also
tolled the funeral dirge. The ringing sound of this his-
toric bell still calls the congregation to worship.

Services were held in-this church until Aug. 18,
1869, when the building was sold to John Rodney, who
converted it into a dwelling. The Booth Apartments
now stand on the site.

- The second congregational building was the first
building at the present location, 121 S. College St. It
was a frame, two-story building and was built by the
congregation at a cost of $3,500. The cornerstone was
laid Oct. 29, 1869. The church was dedicated in the
spring of 1870. The second floor was rented by the

Masons, the village’s oldest lodge. For a time, the rear -

. of the structure was used for a community college, or
“normal school,” thus the name of College Street.

In the early days of the congregation, the church
was connected with a number of other Lutheran chur-
ches to constitute a charge. The churches at Chili,
Stone Creek, Port Washington, Sonora and Adamsville
were at times part of this charge.

The women of the church have always played an
active role in the history of St. Paul Lutheran Church.
One such example would be the events prior to the con-
struction of the present church. Miss Belle Beers, rep-
resenting the Ladies Aid Society, offered to give finan-
cial assistance to expedite the process of constructing a
new building. :

The present building is the second at 121 S. College
St. The comerstone was laid March 18, 1906. The

“bricks for its exterior were baked and glazed right on”
the site of construction and local clay was used.

By 1974, the belfry was in need of further rcpalrs I

and a contract was let to brick and rebuild the top half

with a cupola and cross being added. In 1982, alumi- |

num building products were installed on the eaves, .

tower and cross.

During the pastorate of Rev. Foust, the parsonage
was located beside the church. When the parsonage
needed complete renovation, after much debate it was
decided to buy a new parsonage. A suitable location
was found at 102 Downs Ave., where Rev. Haggis and
his wife, Crystal, now live. The first pastor to live on
Downs Avenue was Rev. Fletcher and his family. It
was in 1966 that the front section of land facing Canal
Strect and known as “canal land” was purchased from

the state at a cost of $350. The kitchen and bathroom at -

the parsonage have been remodeled. A one-car garage
was removed and a two-car garage has been built in
recent years.

Fellowship Hall, located in the church basement,
was remodeled in 1959; the extensive project saw a
new kitchen installed, new ceramic walls and the low-
ering of the ceiling. A new lighting system was
installed later. The project also included a partial
remodeling of the sacristy.

In 1958, the merger of St. Paul and St. Jacob Luthe- |
ran congregations took place. St. Jacob’s building |
(located south of of Newcomerstown) was sold in 1974 |
to a different denomination, Full Gospel Temple

Church. -
As a lasting memorial to St. Jacob’s congregation

and church, the original oil lamp chandelier, bought in |

1898 by the St. Jacob congregation and converted to

_electricity at the end of World War II, was brought to

St. Paul Church on July 21, 1974. The chandelier is
now in daily use, hanging over the church overflow
area. Recently, the pulpit and pulpit chairs from St.

Jacob have been refurbished and restored. They also

have been placed in the overflow area.

“Adventures in Faith,” a program of raising funds
for the building of an educational unit and renovation
of the church, was begun in 1959 under the pastorate of
Rev. Fabian. The building of the educational unit,
along with certain other improvements in the church,
was approved in 1961. Ground was broken in 1962 for
a new two-floor educational unit consisting of Sunday
School rooms, rest rooms, coatrooms, stairwells and an
add-on hot water heating system.

Improvements to the church property consisted of
renovation to the front interior of the church and altar
area; on the front exterior of the church, a large cross
assembly along with a low, decorative brick wall was

- constructed with the name of the church. The original

entrances were closed and new entrances constructed.

This multi-stage improvement included necessary -

changes in the physical church to interface the old and
new structures, among them offices for the pastor and
secretary.

The architect for the $100,000 project was Freder-
ick Stritzel of Columbus. The educational unit and
church renovation was formally dedicated on Jan.'20,

~1963, attended by the congregation, area church lead-

ers, the community and Synod
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Rev. John Fabian 1958-1963

‘ 121S. COLLEGE ST.
Cornerstone laid for education addi-
tion and remodeling Dedicated on Oct. 29, 1869

BRICK CHURCH ON RODNEY'S HILL
Services began 1838
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BRICK CHURCH 121 COLLEGE ST.
Dedicated Dec. 15-16, 1906




The bell that summoned
the people to. worship also
served as a fire bell and was
used to note the beginning of
town council meetings. It was
brought to town by-a canal
boat in 1841. It was the first
bell in the community and was
recently salvaged from the
burned structure in 1999 to
be placed in the new church
once it’s built. The second
congregational building was
the original structure at 121
South College Street. It was a
framed two story building
built by the congregation.

The second floor was
rented to the Masons. For a
time, the rear of the structure
was used for a community
college, thus the name College
Street

- The third church buildis

= was ‘the second one af “the
Coﬂege Street location. The

i ‘cornerstone for it was laid on
March 18 1906. The bricks

 for its exferior were baked and
- glazed on the construcﬁon s1te 3
~ fromlocalclay.
. The belfry of the church
~ and the northwest part of the

‘roof sustained extensive
damage when a tornado swept

- The History of
St. Paul Evangelical

Lutﬁemn Church

buildings throughout town
until repairs were made.

The wooden structure
supporting the- bell had
deteriorated through the
many years of service and in
1868 heavy wooden beams
were installed so the historic
bell could once more toll. By
1974, the belfry was in need
of further repairs along with
the top half of the copular
being repaired and a cross
added.

An education wing was
added in 1962. It was two
floors and consisted of Sunday
school rooms, rest rooms,
coatrooms, stairwells and a
hot water heating system.
Additional improvements
re made.

“As a lasting memorial to
Jacobs Congregation and

 church, the original oil lamp

chandeher which was bought

~in 1898 and converted to
~ electricity at the end of World
‘War II, was installed at St.

Pauls overflow area. St. Jacob’s

- pulpit and pulpit chairs were
refurbished and placed in the
overflow area also. =

In the early morning

hours of October 19, 1999, an

were saved; the bell, a few
stained glass windows, and the
cross on top of the cupola. _.
Many -of -the - -histerical
memorabilia were all
destroyed. ‘

The congregation met in
the East Elementary Gym since
the first Sunday after the fire.
Plans were set in place fo
begin building a new church
soon after the fire. In the span
of eighteen months, plans
were approved to build on the
current location.

Groundbreaking for the
new church was Easter
Sunday, April 15, 2001. _

After much hard work,
church and community fund-
raising the doors of our NEW
Church once again opened for
fellowship and worship in
April of 2003.

through Newcomerstown in
the early morning hours of
March 11, 1955. The damage
was repalrable Church
services were held at various

2

arsonist set a fire in the church
office that gutted the building.
It was a tremendous shock to
the church family and

community. Very few- items -
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BRICK CHURCH ON RODNEY’S HILL
Services began 1838

BRIDGE +NEIGHBOR ST. COLLEGE 5T

N’town Lutherans Mark 129th Anniversary
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FRAME CHURCH
121 S. COLLEGE ST.

Dedicated on Oct. 29, 1869
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St. Paul Lutheran Church was founded on November 11, 1832, in a T1ittle Tlog
school house. A brick edifice was completed in 1838 that was located on
the corner of Neighbor and North Bridge Street (which was then called
Railroad Street). This brick structure, in later years was used as a home
and was called the Neighbor Property. This Neighbor family were decendents
of Nicholas Neighbor.

Mrs. Alma Neighbor was an elementary school teacher in the Newcomerstown
School District for many years and also was a renown artist. One of the
Neighbor daughters also taught school in the local school district -
Bertha El1len (Neighbor) Gilchrist. She later moved to the Cleveland Area.

This same site is now the location for the B ooth Apartments.

ST. PAUL'S LUTHERAN CHURCH
as it appears today

Another view of the old
St. Paul's Lutheran
Church on the corner of
Neighbor and N. Bridge
Street. This was later
occupied by the Neighbor
family.
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THE OLD RODNEY HOUSE
By
Lois Zimmer Craig

2 February 1965

One of these days in the not too distant future, Newcomerstown's
most legendary landmark--the 01ld Rodney House crowning the hill on
North Bridge Street--probably will be a thing of the past.

Regarded as a hazard by parents in the neighborhood whose ventures
some children find expeditions into the gloomy interior more thrill-
ing than TV, the sturdy brick house with gaping windows has been
the object of much concern to village officials for a number of
years.

Without it the town will never be quite the same, for it embodies
not only the spirit of the Lutheran congregation which first built
it, but the préud and peppery spirit of John Rodney énd his wife
Ellen who were its owners after the church became a dwelling.

The history of the first is carefully recorded in annals of St.
Paul's Lutheran Church which abandoned the house of worship on the
hill for a new one down in the valley back in 1869.

With the congregation went the bell which had been brought to the
village on a canal boat and had been suspended on a near-by rail
fence until the community's first church, built with brick burned
on the spot, could be completed in 1838.

Once installed in the bellfrey, it clanged out the alarm for fires,
summoned village officials to meetings and no doubt tolled on the
sad day in 1865 when word came of President Lincoln's assination.
and regularly, every week for 127 years it's been calling Lutherans
to Sunday School and church.

It's the Rodney part of the story, however, which presented the
village with the dilemma that finally, within the next year or so,
probably will be resolved by a sale of the property for delingwent
taxes.

Relatively few still living in the area have any personal recollect-
ion of the Rodney's, but may were highly respected and of the type

which leave a lasting impression, so they were easily visualized

by children and grandchildren of their contemporaries found them a

favorite source of reminiscing.
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BRIEF HISTORY OF METHODISM

IN NEWCOMERSTOWN

The Methodist Episcopal Church of Newcomers-
town was organized.

1832 - The Methodist Protestant Church of Newcomers.

1939 -

March

town was organized.

All M. E. and M. P. Churches became The Metho-
dist Church, and former Methodist piscopal
changed its name to Trinity Methodist Church, and
former Methodist Profestant became known as
College Street Methodist Church,

6, 1966 - A most significant and great moment in
Methodism in this village occurred on this date -
College. Street Methodist and Trinity Methodist
hecame ONE by a merger of the two congrega-
tions and was known as The Methodist Church of
Newcomerstown, Ohio. After the merger of The
A, U. B. Churches with The Methodist Church in
April 1968 through action taken at the General
Conferences, the name of local Methodist Church
was changed to CHRIST UNITED METHODIST
CHURCH OF NEWCOMERSTOWN, under which
name it is now known.

June 16, 1968 - Ground was broken for the new Church

buildings of Christ United Methodist Church on
Oak Street. ?

Oct. 20, 1968 - The corner stone service was held for

Christ United Methodist Church.
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The Church of God was begun as mission work. It started in Newcomerstown in
January 1966. The Powell Building on West State Street, which had formerly
held another congregation's meetings now was used to house the Church of God's

services.

The year 1966 also saw the church incorporated and 1970 saw the purchase of
the old Trinity Methodist Church which is Tocated on the southwest corner of
River and Church Streets by this church group.

This church congregation has been very active helping with many bicentennial
events and honored their minister Reverend Glenn Shugars with a special
Partor's Appreciation Day in 1976 to which the Bicentennial Committee was
invited.

This special day was marked with the celebration of the Bicentennial
Theme in the Church service and was very appropriatedly done to fit the
Bicentennial year.
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;REMODELING GHURCH

‘The Methodist Protestant Church
’ Extensively Improved.

Since our recent reference to the
‘repairs begun on the M. P. church
of this city, great progress has
_been made. The tall, spiral cupa-
1o has been replaced by one of low,
‘modern style, and the cornice and
{eaves have been extended in pro-
| portionate and gracefnl form. The
i brick exterior has been coated with
icement, which gives it & grey
!stone appearance, and improves its

"~ ilooks very much. The front en-
!trance is changed to the northeast
! corner of the building, made acces-
sible by a flight of broad cement
steps. There is also an entrance
.at the southeast corner of the
‘church, facing College st. The
pulpit is to be at the front or north
end of the church, and directly be-
hind it, where the vestibule was for-
merly. the orgen and choir will be
located. On entering the chareh
from the front, the audience will
pe facing you. The interior is fo
be newly frescoed, and will pre-
sent an entirely different appear-
ance to that of former years. The
erection of the church was begun
in 1878 and dedicated in 1879, The
members of the congregation de-
serve much praise for their spirit
of devotion, self-sacrifice and en-
prise, and are to be congratulated
for the model conceptions of im-
provement which they have adopt-
ed and arecarrving out. The work
is being nicely executed by Messrs.
Brank and Charles Baxter and Mr.
S. L. Dawson. The church will
probably be ready for re dedica-
tion early in September. Pastor
Lafayette Bowman and the Liadies’
Aid Society of the church deserve
credit for the pari they are taking
in beauniifying the edifice. 54\:&&,
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College St. Church
Purchases New Site

(Continued from Page One)
church building was Jater con-
veried into a dwelling and is now
part of the American Legion
home in Canal Court.

Some of the charter members
of this society were Mr. and Mrs.
Mose Morgan, Mr. and Mrs. Jos-
eph Mulvane, Mr. and iMrs. J. B.
Stout, Mr. and Mrs. John Mul-
vane, Mr. and Mus. George Lei-
ghninger and Mrs. Catherine
Fletcher. i
At»thgt time the Newcomers-
town church was on 'a circuit
with Port Washington, Chili,
Pleasant Hill, Evansburg, Buck-
horn and Ross. The first record

,[ lars for the years work of the pas-
| tor. In the years 1843-44 Rev.
i John Caddes was the pastor at a
‘salary of one hundred and seven

dollars and from that time the

salary was increased up to about|
lthree hundred and eighty 'ﬁvel
' dollars in 1877. :

i IN 1877 THE membérs began to
feel the need of a ‘new church.

takmg‘iérévgsttaptgpf the fact that
a comparatively large and some-
what pretentious church edifice}

‘has been built in such close prox-|

ble structure in which the Metho-

dist Protestants were V’WOrship_f !

| of the age.”

B s oy

Ping and oceasioned serious dis-
turbances of the congregations in
their respective houses at the
Same hour?e - e
- Thus the property of the Meth-
odist Protestant church was ren-
dered unsuitable for the purpose
of religious worship. The mem- |
bership decided to sell that
church property and if possible
secure a more suitable site on
Whld:l to build a home more in
keeping with the wants of the
community and with the spiril

So a great campaign was laun- |
ched and they had a new church
home soon, which is the struc-
ture at the corner of Canal and
College Streets, which now has
to be abandoned.

That church building has serv-
ed this community well for over
seventy seven years and been a
land mark for may generations
and to use the words of the for-
mer historian * to secure a more |
suitable site on which to build a
home more in keeping with the
wants of the community and
and with the spirit of the age”,
the membership, officials and the
pastor have approved the plan
and pattern for the new church

of salary was one hundred dol- Jr'home on North College st.

imity as to over-shadow the hum-|

i 2
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NEWCOMERSTOWN METHODIST CHURCHES
TRINITY METHODIST CHURCH

The Methodists Churches in Newcomerstown helps to make up some of the history of our
town. The first Methodist Church to be organized was the Methodist Episcopal Church in
1830. The first Board of Trustees members were some names that are still around today in
the names of ancestors of the people on the Board. Jacob Tufford, Aaron Schenck, Peter

Gaskill, Conrad Miller, and Isaish Wilkin. The first minister was a Reverend Donahue.

Members of this group of worshipers met in schooThouses and individuals' homes until 1835
Conrad Miller deeded the 1ot located on the southwest corner of Church and River Street
to the Methodist Trustees to build a church. The first church was built in 1835. This
building burned down and a new church was built in 1866-67 which was also a frame
structure. In 1916 the need to enlarge the building brought the congregation to the
conclusion to build a new brick building. This is the Trinity Methodist Church that we
all knew until the Christ United Church building was built and two congregations united

into one church. The Trinity Methodist building was sold to the Church of God.

The second Methodist Church was the College Street Methodist Church, which was

established in 1832 - 1842. There is a question as to which date is correct.

The Methodist Protestant Church (College Street Methodist) was formed when the Coshocton
Circuit was divided. This formed the Tuscarawas Circuit and the Newcomerstown Mission.

Dr. James Brown and David Mulvane were the leading members of this church.

The first building was situated on what is now the site of our Post Office Building on

Canal Street. The congregation attended this frame building until 1878. It is said the
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the members of the congregation were upset because a '"great edifice" had beén built next
to the MP church and the members did not like to be in the shadow of this "great
edifice”, so they decided to move. The '"great edifice was the Presbyterian Church). In
1878 a brick structure had been erected at the corner of College and Canal Streets, which
1s where the members of the College Street Methodist Church attended until March 1955.
This was the site of the College Street Methodist Church until on March 11, 1955, a
tornado hit the church building, lifted the roof off the building and then set the roof

back down on the bui]ding. THere is a car wash on this site now.
COLLEGE STREET METHODIST CHURCH (TOURAINE BUILDING)

The building was deemed unsafe and the congregation moved to North College Street after
purchasing the Touraine Supper Club from Joe Lenzo. With some renovations the building
was turned into a church building and the members attended church there from 1955 to 1969
when they united with the Trinity Methodist congregationto make the Christ United
Methodist Church. At that time the road went in front of the building, not in the back

as it does now. The North College Street site is now the ODOT building.
CHRIST UNITED METHODIST CHURCH

The present church building was built from 1966 to 1969 when it opened to the combined
congregation of both Methodist churches. OQver time the church has been renovated and
also has had three additions. Those additions are the West entrance room and drive up so
people can get out of their cars and not get wet, or have to walk in snow. The Wesley
Music Auditorium which was built for the choir. After years of not having any designated
place for the choir to practice but the sanctuary or fellowship hall, the auditorium was
built. The choir practices on Thursday evenings and other times when necessary. This
addition is also used for many other things. The third addition built was the River of
Life Community Center which is a huge room and can accommodate playing basketball,

volleyball, or a second service or special events.



Christ United Methodist Church

_ Christ United Methodist Church of Newcomerstown
is the result of a merger of two old and respected
denominations. The older of the two, the former Meth-
odist Episcopal Church, was organized in 1830.

The Rev. Donahue was the first pastor of this newly
organized church, with Jacob Tufford, Aaron Schenck,
Peter Gaskill, and Isaiah Wilkin serving on the Board of
Trustees. Since they had no established place of wor-
ship, they did as early Bible Christians did — met wher-
ever possible; in their case, in homes, barns or school-
houses.

However, in 1835, Conrad Miller deeded a lot to them
and one year later the church was completed. This lot
was on the corner of Church and River Streets, and the
church erecfed thereupon was used until 1854, at which
time it was abandoned and the society worshipped tem-
porarily in Crater's Hall. In 1867, a frame church was
erected on the same site with Dickerson R. Moore as
pastor.

By June 22, 1884, the quarterly report was given and
revealed a total membership in the Sunday School of 97
with an average of 48 and 8 teachers in attendance. In
1945-46 the average attendance was 200.

In 1916, the building committee of Thomas J. Shan-
non, Samuel Rush, John W. Ley, John Hinds, and F.L.
Euga added to the frame building of 1867 and covered
the entire surface with brick. The new church was dedi-
cated on March 12, 1916; the minister was H.F. Patter-
son. The Queen Esther Class was organized in the same
year.

The, g;olleg_?e Street Methodist, formerly the Methodist
Protestant Church was formed | and was thefirst
bunding erected on Canal Street. It stood about where
the present post office is located. Records indicated that
in 1866, the congregation was considering the raising of
funds to build another church. However, this suggestion
was shelved temporarily and the building they had was
equipped with new underpinning, a new roof and new
seats.

In 1878, the congregation moved to its new location,

at the corner of Canal and College Streets. This church
was dedicated in 1879 by Rev. S.A. Fisher, who at a later
date, became one of its pastors. The cost of the building,
including the furnishings, was about $4500. In 1955,
this building was almost demolished by a tornado and
the congregation was forced to move to other quarters.
Following a period of some indecision, they contracted
to purchase the Touraine Club, north of town, and this
edifice served as their church homeuntil the merger of
the two Methodist Churches, in 1966.

College Street Methodist Church and Trinity Method-
1st Church merged on March 6, 1966, under the name of
the Methodist Church of Newcomerstown, Ohio. There-
after, when the United Brethren Church merged with the
Methodist Church Conference, the name was changed
to Christ Unifed Methodist Church, which is the present
name of the church. ™™ — — 7

At the time of the merger of the two Methodist
Churches, March 6, 1966, the former College Street
Methodist Church had purchased a 3.62 acre tract of
land by deed dated December 7, 1965, from Clark Van-
Voorhis and his wife, Laura, which tract is the present
site of Christ United Methodist Church. When the merg-
er of the two churches occurred, Rev. W.A. Hewitt, who
was the pastor of College Street, and Rev. Edwin F.
Eshelman, formerly pastor of Trinity Methodist, were
retained as co-pastors and served the combined congre-
gations until July 1, 1967, when Rev. John P. Benson
became the new pastor and he served until July 1, 1973,
when Rev. Ray Snyder was appointed by the Conference
to serve said church and who is at this time the pastor.

Following this merger, the two congregations took
action to start a new building program. The ground-
breaking ceremony at the Oak Street site occurred on
June 19, 1968 and October 20, 1968, the cornerstone
wgggfaid. The dedication service was held in May of
1969.

The Reverend Ray Snyder is the present pastor of the
church. It has some 700 members. - Submitted by Rev.
Ray Snyder; Written by Doris Baker

y,
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The Methodist Episcopal Church was organized in 1830, with Rev. Donahue
as pastor. The first Board of Trustees were Jacob Tufford, Aaron Schenck,
Peter Gaskil, Conrad Miller and Isaiah Wilkin. The society worshiped in
schoolhouses and homes until 1835, when Conrad Miller deeded to the trust-
ees the lot upon which the present edifice stands. A brick church was

mﬁTSs"@ and used by the society until after the war. In 1866:6?,:1

pew frame structure was erected upon the old site. The church was dedicated
* during the ministry of Rev. Dickenson R. Moore. A parsonage was also built
at a cost of §1,100. A year after the dedication of the church, during the
pastorai;e of Rev. S. A. Thompson, zn extended revival occurred, also during
the pastoral term of Rev. S. R. Clark. The society at present is in a flourish
ing condition with Rev. W. C. Endly as pastor. During the last winter, the
society was visited by the most gracious revival that has ever occurred in its
history. The present church membership is 130.

The Methodist Protestant Church of Newcomerstown was organized in
1842. In September of that year, Coshocton Circuit was divided and Tus-
carawas Circuit and Newcomerstown Mission formed. Dr. James Brown and
David Mulvane were early leading members. The first church was built on
the east side of the present Presbyterian Church, and was occupied until the
present edifice was constructed in 1878, during the pastorate of Rev. W. L.
Wells. It was dedicated July 3, 1879, by Rev. 8. A. Fisher, of Cambridge.
The building is a handsome brick structure, 40x64 feet in size, and its cost,
including furnishing, was about $4,500. The present pastor is Rev. L. Bo-
man, the present membership about 100.
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Christ United Methodist Church,
' Newcomerstown dAK ST
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Newcomerstown Ne

Charter for Church'srgned 80 years ago

ItwasonaSundayinAugustof
. 1900 that a small company of
‘believers called “Baptists’’ decided
to start a Baptist Church in

Newcomerstown. Prior o this, they

had been attending services in a

church located west of town called

the White Eyes Baptist Church.

_ The first meetings were held in the
Village Hall. Actual organizational
_meetings began on June 30, 1901 and
the charter was signed on Feb 2
1902.

On June 8, 1904, the Rev w.J.
Thompson was called as pastor and
in 1905 the church purchased a piece
of ground on South River St. with a
small building formerly used for a
meat market. This building served

. as their church home until 1915.

The church was admitied to the
Cambridge Baptist Association on
~Apg. 23, 1905 The Rev. C. Mully
came in June 1906 and served as
pastor for two years. During this
time the Womens Missionary Socie-
ty was formed.
~ The congregation continued to
grow and in 1915, during the
pastorate of the Rev. L.A. Wilson, a
new church building was erected on
this property in place of the meat
market building. The new church
was a big undertaking and was to
cost the ‘ftremendous” sum of
$5,000. A dedication service took
- place oin Nov.-28, 1915, with the Rev.
David Morris preachmg the
dedicatory sermon.

During the follomng years the
church was served by L.L. Lightner,
W.B. Godsall, Harley C. Fletcher,
L.M. Copeland, E.L. Greer, LL.
Basford, C.E. Thompson, Paul G.
Smithson, B.A. Wilson, John Brad-
bury, Ralph Dovenbarger, Douglas
Peters, George Shurtz and Fred
Wakeling. S

The Rev. Wakeling led the con-
gregation in the forming of a
building committee in 1962. Carl
Peoples was committee chairman
and Clifford Overholt was assistant

An architect was hired, followed
by the purchasing of ground from
the Bell Telephone Company. Ar-
rangements also were made to pur-

chase additional property from Ceeil -

Haver on the sonthmde of the

Thenextstepwasafunddnve~—a

: very suecessful endeavor.

The J.A. Raeder Company of
Dover was hired as contractor. The
Rev. Harold Kidwell, who had come
to pastor the church in September
1365 following the death of the Rev.
Wakeling, worked hard in making
the new church areality. -

Dedication of the present church
facilities was held on Nov. 19, 1967.

This fall will mark the 80th an-
niversary of the Baptist Church in
Newcomerstown. The local church
is a member of the American Bap-

. tist Convention and the Cambmdge

Association with offices in the col-

lege at Granville, O.

Present minister is the Rev.

~Donald Glasgow, who has pastored

the church for the past seven years.
He was preceded by the Rev Tom

Gambhn.
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Newcomerstown Baptlst Church vaer St. is pn:tured at
its dedicatory services Nov. 28, 1915. Rev. L.R. Wilson was
pastor at that time in the church’s history. The church was
replaced in the mid-1960’s with the huildina thot céandn et~




JESSI MARCINCAVAGE
Newcomerstown News
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* For the last century, The First Baptist Church
looked upon the scripture, “Now faith is the sub-
'stance of things hoped of, the evidence of things
not seen,” (Hebrews 11:1) to assure them that God
would provide a place of worship for them some-
day. /
%, The First Baptist organized in a home of Isaac
Evans in Oxford Township, Coshocton County,
called the, White Eyes Plains Church on
November 5, 1825.
« “I can.remember when the church was a brick
building 30x60 with a slate roof,” said Roland
Hackenbracht of the First Baptist Church of
Newcomerstown. “It was across from the Union
ne-room school, which was located about three-
‘miles west of Newcomerstown.

“The March 11, 1955 tornado destroyed part of
the building.”

*Years after the White Eyes Plains Church was
established, a meeting was held on Sunday,
| August 26, 1900 to discuss the possibilities of
Istarting a mission in Newcomerstown. Faith gave

em the chance to see and feel this mission enter-
prise. The next Sunday it was reported that the
Town Hall in Newcomerstown would be available
for services free of any charge except for heat and
light.

A year later, the White Eyes Plains Church and
the Pleasant View Baptist Church pledged to sup-
§port to the Newcomerstown Baptist Mission. The
E'gxst Sunday School was established a month after
ithe pledge.

. A charter was signed in 1902 and the mission
tbecame a Baptist church. Rev. W.H. Taylor was

e first pastor at the Baptist Church. In March
11902 there was a Declaration of Faith and Rules

f Order. It is written in the declaration of faith
"that their beliefs “of the scriptures”, “of the true
God”, “of all the fall of man”, “of the way of sal-

vation”, “of justification”, of the freeness of sal-
vation”, “of grace and regeneration”, of the repen-
tance and faith”, “of the perseverance of the
saints”, “of baptism and the Lord’s Supper”, “of

the Christian Sabbath”, “of civil government”, “of
the righteous and the wicked” and “of the world to
come” to be included.

On June 8, 1904 the Reverend W.J. Thompson
was called as pastor after Rev. Taylor closed his
work in Newcomerstown. During the term of Rev.
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Baptist Church to c

Thompson, a lot with a small building on it that
had been used as meat market was purchased. The
meat shop was then transformed into a House of
Worship, which served as the First Baptist Church
until 1915.

The church was then admitted into the
Cambridge Baptist Association.

The First Baptist Church was ministered to by
several other pastors after Thompson’s leave. It
was during Rev. Wilson’s time that a new church
building would be erected at the cost of $5,000. A
dedicatory service was held on November 28,
1915 for the new church building that the pioneers
of the First Baptist church worked-hard to obtain.

“I can remember going there and sleeping on the
hard pews,” said Mardell Shaw. “I can remember
the services that we had in the old church.

“I remember for birthday’s they had this wooden
cake and you went up front to put your money in
the cake.”

“I can remember after baptizing that we had to
go outside to get to the basement,” said Doris
Overholt. “It didn’t matter what the weather was
outside, but no one caught a cold. This is the
church I have always known. I was born and
raised in it.”

Norma Ross remembered the retreats that they
had out in Otsego.

“That was a time when they got away from the
fancy things and conveniences of home.”

The ground for the present First Baptist Church
was purchased in 1962. In 1966, the last service
was held in the old church and it wouldn’t be until
late of 1967 that the dedication of the new church
building would have taken place. During the time
when there was no church, services were conduct-
ed in the East School building and prayer meet-
ings were held in the community room of the
Nation Bank of Dover in Newcomerstown.

“I can say that whenever there is a project, our
church is debt free in the end,” said Norma. “They
work hard until they have the money to do it.”

With hard work, there is unity and where there is
unity there is love.

“It is not unusual for many hugs to be given
before and after each service.”

On April 21, the First Baptist Church will be cel-
ebrating their 100th Anniversary with a special
“Faithful Service” on that Sunday afternoon at 3
p-m. The celebration will be at the First Baptist
Church on South River Street in Newcomerstown.
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FORMER HOME OF THE FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH
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The ol1d Church of Christ structure now houses the Scriptural Holiness Church
which you will read about later in this chapter.

The next church to be founded in Newcomerstown was the First Baptist Church
which began in the year 1902 on January 26.

The church building was built and the dedication was held on November 28,
in the year 1915.

In the 1960's it became necessary to enlarge the church and a new structure
was built on the old site, which is Tocated on River Street at Church Street.

This edifice is of brick and serves the congregation's needs well.

There was also a provision made for some parking at the time of the rebuilding
of the new church which has greatly helped the parking situation of the people
attending the Baptist Church.

The present minister is Reverend Donald Glasgow.
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'n 1900 the town saw still another church come into being. This was the
rst Evangelical United Brethern Church in the old Index Building which
vas located on River Street.

1906 a new building was dedicated. It was built on the corner of
11er Drive (which was then known as Carlyle Street) and State Street.

In 1946 the Evangelical United Brethern and the United Brethern Church
were merged and became the United Brethern Church.

During the past years the building has been enlarged when it became nec-
essary. In 1968 when the United Brethern Church united with the Methodist
Church, the congregation elected to stay in their own church building, but
renamed the church the Calvary United Methodist Church.
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HISTORY OF THE CHURCH IN NEWCOMERSTOWN

Copied from directories 1966 and 1967 compiled by Larry Arnold, Sr.

"The Church of Christ in Newcomerstown was started by a few members here assisted by the
original Yankee Ridge church under the evangelism of I. H. Pennell of Malta, Ohio. It began
meeting in the Town Hall on Church Street in 1901. The two men who assisted most in the
estabﬁshment of the church were the late Mitchel Atkinson and H. M. Eagon. A move was soon
made to what we know as the Haver Building and from there to the McCulley Building, where
services were held until the erection of a building on the corner of State Street and McKinley
Avenue in 1908. At that time there was a membership of about forty.

In 1923 ). H. Hines began his work as the first located evangelist with the congregation. Since
that time, such men as Oliver Johnson (1926), Ben S. Thisselle (1926-1931), H.E. Taylor (1932),
L.F. Mills (1940), Carl Finley (1940), Kenneth Adams (1942-1944), Russell Bankes (1944-1946),
Lawrence Stine (1946-1948), Wellington Gallagher (1948-1951), Fred Cline (1951-1955), and
David Reppart (1956-1964) have worked here.

The present building was dedicated on June 4, 1961."
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This early 1900s photo-shows the former Church of Christ under construction on the corner of
State St. and McKinley Ave. The church is now the Church of Christ in Christian Union. ™
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The Newcomersfown Chureh of Chriet
Meets at Goodrich & Elizabeth Street
Newcomerstown Ohio, 43832
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The Church of Christ was established in the year 1901. The building for
the church was Tocated on West State Street. As the congregation grew
so did the church.

Later the congregation decided to build a new structure which is Tocated l,
at the corner of Goodrich and Elizabeth Streets.

This building was erected in the year 4969~ The present minister is
M. Gale Yoho. [ 700 _‘
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urch of

purpose of the worship of

- present building on West
State street was erected in the year!
1909 .and at the time of opening
was paid for with the exception of
labout  fourteen hundred dollars
which was ‘cleared away in about
thrse years time. 'I‘he coﬁgregation

Y ongregatwu even

{the twentleth chapter and seventh

 |meeting in the Town Hall whether

|Nathan Cramblett, C. H. Morin, |
| W.. B. McVey, C. D Moore and

_|the first located minister and H.

15, {comes from a family of eleven chil-

‘di-{when about: exghteen years of age,

Phofographs.’
w1th its present membershlp wmch

“Green’s

necessary running
epending solely on
tr;buinons into the

gregation I Ldrd’s Suppel
which is taken on the first day of
the week - emory ef Christ the
head of the church, as according to
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ing invitation and world- -wide plan

of salva,marw : : gnﬁbywﬁemwm
the last and re'ﬁ gg‘ . “Gb
ye into all and. 17HHE

‘gospel 1 1 at
believeth and 'is baptized shall be
sayed, but he that dlsbeheveth shall

for pure gospgﬂ ’gea
worship along with pure and holy
‘Christian conduct. Joe Hines was

E. Taylor is the present minister
hiving come here the first of this
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Remembering Joe S. Warlick

James R. McGill

Joe Warlick (1866-1942) was born
near St. Louis.  The family later
moved to Texas. In 1885, at age nine-
teen, Joe preached his first sermon in
a small west Texas town. For the next
fifty-four years, until he suffered a
heart attack in 1939, Warlick contin-
ued preaching, debating, and writing
without interruption.

His preaching was mostly in evan-
gelistic meetings in which Joe would
preach daily and nightly before mov-
ing on to preach at another location.
He presented the gospel plan of salva-
tion so plainly that thousands were led
to faith in Jesus, repentance, and bap-
tism for the forgiveness of their sins.

Preaching and Debating

Joe alternated between debating
and preaching. A significant number
of conversions resulted from the de-
bates. Warlick presented the truth so
that it stood out clearly in sharp con-
trast to the error presented by his op-
ponent.

Warlick participated in 399 de-
bates!

Outstanding Education

Joe had a fine education and made
the very best use of it. Both in his

writing and in his speaking, his train-
ing enabled him to express himself in
the most understandable way.

Joe had an older brother, Jim, and
some younger sisters.  Their father
had decided that since he could afford
to send only one child to school, it
would be Jim, since he was older.
But Jim said, “I don’t care for an edu-
cation and Joe does....Let Joe go to
school.” Joe said that this was the
turning point in his life. Jim died in
1937 in Oklahoma City. At Jim’s
funeral, Joe said, “Whatever success I
have attained in life [ owe to Jim.”

Joe and his first wife, Florence,
had four children. In 1901, five years
after Florence died, Joe married
Lucie. Joe enjoyed the great blessing
that both Florence and Lucie were
fully supportive of his life’s work.

Warlick’s Writing

It would be natural to think first of
the amazing number of Warlick’s
debates, and of the wonderful way in
which the Lord blessed his preaching.
He preached in many states and in
Canada.

But Joe Warlick was also an out-
standing writer. He made his points
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as simple and clear to the reader as he
did to the listener.

The Stark-Warllick Debate

One very historic example of Joe
Warlilck’s use of both his speaking
and writing skills was in the Stark-
Warlick debate on the use of instru-
mental music in the worship.

This was a public, spoken debate,
but the two disputants agreed that they
would afterward write out their
speeches for publication in a book to
be published by the Gospel Advocate
Company.

The debate was held at Henderson,
Tennessee, in 1903. Henderson was
significant because it was the home of
West Tennessee Christian College.

At that time it appeared that any
hope of stopping the tide of digression
was dim. The church throughout that
area was going into apostasy with
such innovations as the introduction
of instrumental music into the worship
and the missionary society. The de-
bate was a great success—a victory
for truth.

Here is a typical sentence of War-
lick’s debate. It illustrates his clarity
and forcefulness. He challenged his
opponent: “If there be in all the Bible
one...verse authorizing instrumental
music to be used in the worship of the
church of Jesus Christ, bring it for-
ward.” His opponent could not.

Far-Reaching Effect

More than a century has gone by
since that debate. And for more than
a century, at that very location, Freed-
Hardeman University has been train-
ing great numbers of faithful gospel
preachers and has helped toward
building thousands of Christian
homes. How different it might have
been, were it not for the way the Lord
used Joe S. Warlick!

The Middle Tennessee School of
Preaching & Biblical Studies

Evening Classes ¢ Free tuition
Classes for Everyone

Nine Locatlons

College Grove, Nashville, Savannah,
Lebanon, Murfreesboro, McMinnville,
Goodlettsville, Culleoka, Leeville

Milton Stephens, Director

(931) 478-0281

mtsp@att.net ¢ mtsop.net

Middle Tennessee School of Preaching
PO Box 288
College Grove, TN 37046
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~—_ Religtous Debate,

There will he a religious discus.
gié)t?’ hek}ri‘n this citybeginning Dec.
28th. he opposing Esmeu are
Dr. D. B, Turney of Effingham,
11, who will represent the M. P.
church, and Elder Joe 8. Warlick
of Dallas, Texas. to, represent the
Chaurch of Christ. The followin

are the propositions to be dimnssmf:

1.~The Scriptures teach that sprink-
ling or pouring clean water upon  prop-
er subject in the name of the Trinity is
an aeg? aggmrizad b& Qll::ut and Suﬁ
ticed aposties ptism. D,
Turney, affirms; Joe 8. Wazlick, denies.
2-The Scriptures teach that immer.
sion is the aet commanded by Christ and
gncﬁu& by hia aposties for baotism.
o S. Warlick, affirma; D. B. Turey,
denies,
3—The Seriptures teach that in the
conviction and conversion of the sinner
the Holy 8pirit operates directly {imme-
diatsiyi upon the heart. D. B, Tarney,
affirms: Joa R, Warlick, denies.
4--The Scriptures teach that baptism
to tim bulieviog penitant is for (in order
to) the remission of past (alien; sine.
Turoey, atirms; Warlick, denies,
5~The Scrism wgb that ‘lxgnhnts
are proper sy or baptism, Turney
affirma; Warlick, denies.
6—-The Beriptures teach that the
church, or ki of Christ, was es.
tablished tset upjon the first pentecost
sftes the resurrection of Christ. War-
lick, affirms; Turooy, denies,
This discussion will continue for at

lenuixda_::. (JCT', f/",oé"

—~— GOt Them Revorsed. —

Rev. D. B, Turney of Effingbam.
111, who is to represent the Meth.
odist Protestant church in the re-
Ligious debate to take place in New.
comerstown, beginning Dee. 28
calls our attention to the fact that,
on proposition Ne. 4, namely, that
“The Soriptures teach that bap-
tism, 1o the believing penitunt, is
for {in order 10} the remission of
past {alien ) sing,” the names were
reversed aud should bave read, Joe
8. Warlick, of the Chureh of Christ,
affirme, and D. B Tuorney denies. |
It was the printer's mistake and
not the one who furnished the oepy.
Dr. Turvey rdds, further, =1 desire
the sympathy, prayers, cordial co-
aperation snd earnest friendship.
of every God-fearing, truth.loving,
and light-seeking soul in New.
comerstown, amd no doabt, my op-
ponent also does.  Information
i which we have scquired at great
cso;e will be smrt? suz!xwthing to all
‘who give ae a patient bearing.”

Ryt iy 7 Y

~ " RELIGIOUS DEBATE. ——
The series of debates hetween
Rev. Dr. D. B, Turney of Effing.
bam. {iL, reprosenting the Metho.
dist Protestaot church, and Elder
Joe 5. Warlick of Dailus. Tes , rep-
iresenting the Church of Christ,
iclosed at the M. P, ¢hurch in this
ety last Friday, after sis consecu.
tive daily discussions, ach Insting
probably two Lours or more. The
qneﬁ!iox_m at issne were baptism,
conversion and the estublishing of
Christ’s kingdom; questions that
bave been debated tiroe and again,
sud bave become 6o fixed in the
convietious of their adberents as to
admit of little change, if any, No
idoubt the time eonld bave been
|more pro itably spent in harmoniz.
ing r¥ r than distracting these
or any sluer religions bodies. The
churches and the world needs more
of the genaine “spirit” and less of
the “lstter” of Christinnity, and the
churehes should set the example in
cordinl fellowship, bearty co-opera.
iimn. cherity and brotherly love,

| NEWMAN-BEAMHALL.
: 'gj?#d_;m.- Waserman s lackan.
AN )50
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In the year 1962 the citzens of Newcomerstown saw a new church formed which
was the Scriptural Holiness Church.

This church was under the leadership of Reverend William A. Gamble.

The former building which was the Church of Christ houses the congregation
for this church group. The church organization was incorporated in the

year 1963 on May 29.

This church is located on West State Street and was the former house of
worship for the Church of Christ group.
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% Presbyterians Observe

(Continued From Page 1)

Temperance House Museum.

The congregation was
organized and met in the former
Methodist Protestant Church in
the frame building on the land
now occupied by the post office.

The Manse, since Feb. 14, 1900
the home of all pastors and their
families, was purchased from
Dr. J.R. McElroy, and sits on
the property adjacent to the
church.

The record of the Mertgage
Buring service of Sunday, June
15,1941 contains this description
of the original part of the
church, namely the Sanctuary
and front tower: ‘Of brick
burned in the Tom Crawford
brick works at the west end of
Church St. and erected at a total
cost of about $3,000, it presented
a fine appearance with its hand
worked glass, burned after
being brushed with special
designs at the top of each
window.”’

The one room and one door
(aside from a small room on the
northeast corner) and tower
entrance stairway on the
westnorth side of the
auditorium was ‘“The Church”
until 1931 when the first meeting
was held in a new part added
to the south and containing a
large Fellowship Hall and
separate classrooms.

Cost of the addition was more
than underwritten but due to the
depression conditions including
bankruptcy by 1940 about $3,000
remained until liquidated by the
drive which resulted in the

mortgage burning service of
June 1941.

At that service the same
seats were used as in the
original building, the same first
pulpit and communion table
present with the same first
windows but with new lights and
a new steam-vapor heating
system for the new part.

That same first communion
table is still in the building and
was used along with the new
pulpit and chancel furnishings,
installed in January, 1947 to
celebrate the Centennial
Communion Service Nov. 14.
Pews for the congregation were
installed in 1961 prior to the
time of the 85th Anniversary,
the last anniversary celebrated
before the Centennial. It is
interesting to note the last pews
in themselves cost far more
than the original building in 1877
and 1878.

It was the hope of those who
spoke at the centennial service
that this convenant would still
be the example for the mem-
bership, now some 105 in
number. The challenge is that
the landmark will be as in-
fluencial in the coming years as
it has been in the community
and in people’s lives in the past
100 years.

The original convenant read:
“By vote the above named
persons (some 13 in number)
entered into Solemn Covenant
to walk together, taking the
Holy Scriptures as their guide,
acknowledging the Doctrines
and Order of the Presbyterian
Church and promising to

cooperate in Christian work and
faithfulness, and studying the
unity and prosperity of the
Church at home and abroad.”




The Fresbyterian Church was organized November 13, 1876, by a conunittee
of the Steubenville Presbytery, with the following original merbers: Adol-
phus W. Search and Mrs. Low M. Search, Jonathan and Rebecca Evans, Mrs.
Emma Evans, George and Ruth Baguall, Robert Y. Patterson, by certificate:
and Philip Sheets, Mrs. Susan Sheets and Miss Lillie T. Bagnall on profession.
For several years the congregation was irregularly supplied, and, in 1879,
Rev. George W. Riggle took eharge, and remained ten months. TRev. A, B.
Wilson succeeded him, was regularly installed pastor, and continued a little
longer than a year. After a vacancy of some time, Rev. David B. Rodgers,
in the spring of 1883, assumed the pastoral relation, and still maintains it.
George Bagnall and Robert Y. Patterson, the first Ruling Elders, were installed
Novewmber 13, 1876, George W. Barnett and Philip Sheets were installed in
the same official position January 22, 1879, and John Buck was elected March
1%, 1880. The church editice is a handsome and commodious brick structure,
located on the west end of South Canal street. It was erected in 1S7S8, at a
cost of $3,000. The membership of this congregation is now abous sixty

A Baptist society had an existence here a few years ago, which was, how-
ever, of brief duration. Samuel Mardis and Caleb Emerson were its main

: support. Y5tory Trse Co g
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The Presbyterian Church was the next church to be established. A committee
of Steubenville Presbytery helped to form this church on November 13, 1876.

Original members were: Adolphus W. Search, Mrs. Low M. Search, Jonathan
and Rebecca Evans, Mrs. Emma Evans, George and Ruth Bagnall, Robert Y. Pat-
terson by certificate, Philip Sheets, Mrs. Susan Sheets, and Miss Lillie T.
Bagnall.

George Bagnall and Robert Y. Patterson were installed as the first ruling
Elders.

The church building was erected in 1878 on the site where it still stands
on Canal Street.

Reverend George W. Riggle was the first pastor to serve the church.
The present pastor is Reverend (harles Lee.

The. church just the week of November 15th celebrated its Centennial
Anniversary.

e e
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In 1908 the Trinity Baptist Church was organized under the supervision of
Mr. Lowery. He also helped with financial aid to establish this church.
Mr. Lowery was known by his nickname "Big Ginnie". The church site was
located on Clow Avenue ( which had been named for the Clow Pipe Company
and the Clow family).

1 ae R s Taa 0y e akosen dirii et -

During the year of 1923, the church was completely destroyed by fire.

Until a new building could be erected, the Clow Company allowed the Trinity
Baptist congregation to use its office building for services. This building
is located on State Street at Clow Avenue.

a2 e L 3 EEe

In 1925 the present church building was erected by the Clow Company for the 3
members. Most of the members were employees of Clows. The church members E
paid the Clow Company for the building. g

An 1nteres£ing note is that the first chairs used in this church were from é
the "01d Opera House". :

The first minister which served this church was
and the present minister is Reverend Sherrell.

In the late 1960's, the name Clow Avenue was changed to Martin Luther King
Drive at the request of the residents in this area. This was to honor the
Reverend Martin Luther King, Jr. who had been assassinated earlier in the
1960's.




In 1917 it became apparent that a Catholic Church was needed in the area.
The year 1917 saw the founding of the St. Francis De Sales Catholic Church
which began in the summer of 1917. This was done by Father Zuber from
Coshocton, Ohio.

At that time Father Zuber conducted a poll and found that 70 persons of the
Catholic faith resided in Newcomerstown.

A storeroom on the corner of Chestnut and State Streets was bought and then
converted for use as a church. In May of 1918 the first Mass was celebrated
by the congregation and Father Zuber.

Later the Lanning house on Goodrich Street was used for the services. Then

in 1938 the church site that we know today was dedicated and the church built.
On June 8, 1969 the fellowship hall was added to the original building mak-
ing it the edifice that we have today.

The present minister is Monsignor A.L. Freund.




Members of St. Francns deSales
Church, 440 S. River St., New-
comerstown, will celebrate the par-

sh’s 75th anniversary at the 10:30

am. Mass on Sunday, May 23.
Former pastors Father John
Kempf and Father Robert Manning
will join the present pastor, Father
- Michael Hanrahan, in the concele-
brated Mass. Parish students from

t, Ncwcomcrstown News

gmde,s 5-12 wnll pmlpate in the.
Massbycomb ining the old and the
new in song. Following the Mass
there wﬂlbearecepuonmthepansh
hau o

The pansh council is inviting .
everyone in the community to join in
the Mass and reception.

In the summer of 1917, Bishop:
James J, Hartley of Columbus sent

ch., May 19, 1993

urch celebrates 75th anniversar

Father Arthur Zuber, assistant to
Rev. JJ. Slattery of Sacred Heart
Church in Coshocton to Newcomer-
stown to take a census of Catholic
- families, In March of the following
year, a lot and grocery store at the

corner of E. State Street and Chest-

nut Street were purchased and the
store was converted into a church,
complete with a cross added to the

ST. FRANCIS DeSALES CHURCH

top. On May 18, 1918, the church‘
was blessed and the first Mass was
offered by Father Zuber.
1In 1919, the mission parish of St..
Francis deSales was turned over to

 Father Slattery to the Capuchin

Fathers of Dover, who served until
the summer of 1921 when Bishop
Hartley appointed Father C.F. Pow-
ers as the first resident pastor. The
parish purchased its present property
on S. River Street in September,
1921. The purchase of the former
R.L. Shoemaker home became both
church and rectory, latér being used
as the high school annex. This struc-
ture has since been demolished.

On Oct. 19, 1937, Father Hugh J.
Spires broke ground for the present
church which was dedicated on
March 15, 1938, The present parish
hall, which is widely used by the
community, was dedicated in 1969.

Serving as pastors during the 75
years were Fathers C.J. Powers,
Francis Trettle, Anthony Schlemit-
zauer, Joseph A. Humma, Lawrence
Riley, Hugh J. Spires, Edmund
McCormick, Joseph Buzek, Michael
Tabit, Robert Schuer, Edmund
McNulty, John Kempf, Patrick
Byme, Ambrose Freund, Robert
Manning and the present pastor, Mi-
chael Hanrahan.

During the reception, guests may
view displays of historical docu-
ments and artifacts of parish history.

Jd
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ChurchObservels_u - —
25th Anniversary et
Of Building Here

(Continued from page 1)

ish of Saint Franeis de Sales over
to the Capuchin Fathers in Do-
ver. They served the parish un-
'til the summer of 1921 when
{ Bishop Hartley app6inted Rev.
Father C. F. Powers as its first
resident pastor. He offered his

First Mass on July 10th.

THE ORIGINAL property was
sold and the site on which the
. present church now stands was
purchased from James M. and
Emma Lanning. The property
was formerly owned by Rankin
L. Shoemacher and J. W, Cas-
singham. A church was furnished
on the first floor of the house
and pastor resided on the second
i floor. Later it was sold to the
Board of Education.

On October 19, 1937, Rev. Fr.
Hugh J. Spires broke ground for
the present church. On Tuesday,
March 15, 1938 Father Spires of-
fered the First Mass. i

Renovation of the interior. of
the church was begun by the
Rev, Fr. Edmund McNulty, who
was assigned in 1962 to form a
new parish, Saint Leonard, in
Heath, Ohio. All the work was
done by the parishoners. The
work was completed under the
| present pastor Rev. Fr. John D,

Kempf. : :
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The Church of the Nazarene was established on May 26, 1935. This group
first' met in the Duff Hall on River Street. It had a Charter Membership
of 13. Later the group bought a church building in Plainfield, Ohio.
They had this building torn down and moved to the corner of Neighbor
Street and Rivetr Street Extension.

In 1943 a new church was built on the same site. It was dedicated on
May 2, 1943.

As the membership enlarged the need for a new and larger building became
evident. On June 1, 1954, the contract was signed for a new edifice. 1In
the year 1965 a new addition was added to the church after having acquired
more land that adjoins the church land.

After the new addition had been built connecting the church and the addition
we have the Nazarene Church as we know it today.

The present pastor is Reverend Ray Hassinger.




/ 52

'LSemb1y of God Church was started in Newcomerstown in 1937 by Reverend
Johnson. The church originated in Springfield, Missouri and had
throughout the United States.

-wcomerstown, the group first met in a storeroom. In 1940 the congregation
ired some land on College Street and had the church building erected on

roperty.

60 it became necessary to remodel the building and in 1963 the church was
rporated. Again in 1974, the building was enlarged by the addition of the
owship Hall which was added to the church building itself.
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In 1920 we saw the founding of the St. Paul's A.M.E. Church. These initials
stand for the African Methodist Church.

The site of this church was chosen and the ground purchased from the James B,
Clow and Sons Company.

The building is located on what is now called Martin Luther King Drive.

The first minister to serve this church was Reverend Harriston.




N

year 1963 saw the.beginning of the fifteenth church in the community.
new church organization which was formed was called the Baptist Chapel

group first met in the Powell Building on West State Street. 1In 1965
as incorporated and moved to the Leading Building on Main Street.
is is presently Dr. Schrickel's Office). At that time the name we know

church by today "Valley View Baptist Church" was also changed from the
tist Chapel Mission.

1 1967, the Greyhound Post House became available and the congregation

cided to purchase this building. This church is located on Pilling Street
ust south of the Route 258 viaduct.

he building has had some remodeling done and the congregation has enlarged
wer the years. The first pastor was Reverend Jimmy Robbins, who has since
tarted another church in Port Washington, Ohio.

;The present minister is Reverend Leslie Hicks.
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The Four Square Gospel Church was the next church to began worship services
~in Newcomerstown.. This church began in the year 1932. It was situated in
~an upstairs room in a building on River Street.

ater the group moved to 101 Canal Street, the Ortt Buildin d
hart1y lot just off State Street. g and then to the

The present church was built in 1937. It is located on West Street. In 1962
the congregation saw the need to update the church. The building was remodeled
and redecorated to better served the needs of the congregation.
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Cxford Township Churches

Baptist - Birds Run Baptist Church was organized in 1845 in Guernsey Co. In 1853 was
moved to Oxford Township. A new frame building was erected in 1870

Baptist - Pleasant View Baptist Church. It was built of planks in 1899 on Church Rd.

Everal's Chapel in Everal. First in Tuscarawas County Oxford Township. Counity
line was moved, it was then in Coshocton County Oxford Township

Hartwood Church, Nondenominational Community Church on Hartwood Rd.
formally had been a Methodist Church.

Lutheran - German Lutheran Church. It was organized in Guernsey Co. around 1820 to
1825. It was built of logs. They moved to the southwest part of Oxford Township on Cadiz
Rd. They erected a building there in1868. It was built of planks and had three windows
on each side. In 1897 they built a new building and it became St. Jacob's Lutheran
Church on Cadiz Rd., which is now named Church Rd. Later it became a church called
Full Gospe Temple at 8188 Church Rd.

Methodist - Early's Methodist Episcopal Church and Cemetery, located on N. E. corner of
Early Cemetery Rd. and Zion Rd. It was founded by John Early who died in 1853.

It was first a log meeting house, then a frame building. See page 233

Methodist - Peoples Methodist Episcopal Church was organized about 1843. very soon
after a building was built, a log house. In 1857, 1900 and 1967 it was destroyed by fire, a new
building was built each time. In 1967, the name was changed to Peoples Community Church.
It is located on Peoples Church Rd.

Methodist - Zion Methodist Episcopal Church, built of logs, at the present
site of Zion Cemetery.

Peoli Methodist Church was built in the 1830s. Peoli was called Newtown when the
building was built.

United Brethren Centenary Church was organized about 1855, when the first church
structure was built. A new building was built Oct. 23,1873. Located on Centenary Rd.

Monroe Township Churches - Gurnsey County

Birmingham Methodist Church was built in 1839. It was a stone structure in Birmingham
(then known as Milnersburg). It relocated to a frame building that was erected in 1871.

Clear Fork Regular Baptist Church. It started in 1822 and for some 20 years they met in a
log meeting house in Birmingham. A new frame building was built about 1 1/4 miles
downstream and was used for 36 years. The present church building was built in 1880. It is
located on Broadhead Rd. near Birmingham. Now it is called Clear Fork Baptist Church.

TIrish Ridge Church or Hopewell Church, built about 1830, it was built of logs and near this
place two other churches were successively erected, the present one in 1889. It is of the
Methodist Protestant denomination. Later called United Methodist Church.

Wheeling Township Churches - Guernsey County

Bethel Church of Christ. It is located on Bethel Rd. just south of the Guernsey Co. line.

Birds Run Community Church was organized in 1898 as The Bridgeville Methodist
Episcopal Church. Then it became the United Methodist Church, Then it becamethe Birds
Run Community Church. It is located in Birds Run.

Guernsey United Methodist Church, In the 1830s, a log structure located north of
Guernsey, at the corner of Co. Rd. 33 and township Rd. 382 (Zion Road) near the
Guernsey Cemetery. The existing building was built in 1893 in Guernsey.
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Township Churchs

St. Jacob's Lutheran Church

As for as can be determined, the early history of St. Jacob's church began with the
settlement of some German families about a mile south of the present church in the
early 1800s. Why these families settled in the hills instead of the Tuscarawas river
valley is possibly explained by the fact that hill country was free from plague and
malaria that struck the people in the valley.

The German Lutheran Church was built around 1820 to 1825. It was organized in
Gurnsey Co. and built of logs. When this church became too small the congregation
decided to move it from Union Hill to another location on a better road and nearer
the Lutheran community. They moved in 1868. This new site was on the old
Coshocton- Cadiz road leading to Pittsburg. Now called Church Rd.

That made three churches in this Community, the Zion M. E. Church, built of logs on
the present site of the Zion Cemetery; the Pleasant View Baptist Church, built of planks,
on Church Rd. and the Lutheran Church.

Over this road, cattle, sheep, horses, hogs and even turkeys were driven to the eastern
markets. This road was used because it avoided the necessity of crossing
the Tuscarawas river.

The new church was constructed of planks, had three windows on each side and the
pulpit was high and enclosed. There were two rows of seats with benches 10 feet long. It
was built in 1868.

A new church building was built in 1897. Joseph Loader directed the building of this
church. It had four windows on each side.

The land for the new church was donated by Jacob Boltz and the cemetery land was
donated by Jacob Miller. The Church was called St. Jacob's in memory of the two men.

The bell for the church was purchased from the MP church at Wolf for $100. The church
property includes the church, the cemetery and two acres of ground, and is pleasantly
situated on top of the hill. The church still has its German Bible, the language taught in
the Sunday school in the early days of the church, and a pipe organ, which is still in the
church but used.

The organization of the church went into effect May 23,1897. On Oct. 20 of that year
they joined the East Ohio synod and formed a charge with St. Paul's Lutheran Churh
in Newcomerstown.

The congregation of St. Jacob's Lutheran church will officially become members of St.
Paul's Lutheran church. The congregation of St. Paul's accepted the property of St. Jacob's
church, south of Newcomerstown, on May 2, 1958.

A German Lutheran Church stands in the southwest quarter of Section 16, in the
southwestern part of the township, on the farm now owned by Jacob Boltz. The society was
organized in Guernsey County; but remved to this township, and erected the present
building in 1868. History of Tuscarawas County 1884. - Oxford Township Map 1908

A German Lutheran Church stands just this side of the county line in the southeastern
part of the township. It is a small frame building built about ten years ago. The congregation
is very limited in point of number and belongs principally to Tuscarawas County.

History of Coshocton County 1881 - Coshocton Co. Oxford Township Map 1872
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The Bloody Bible

One of the most famous legends of Tuscarawas Valley history involves the Bloody Bible,
which today can be found at the Newcomerstown Olde Main Street Museum. However, it
had a long journey and interesting story before arrival there for safekeeping.

The story centers around John Early, who grew up in Harrison County, lived a happy life,
and enjoyed the music of the violin, which he played very well. After meeting a Methodist
circuit rider, John Early was converted to Christianity and gave up his violin playing as
"the devil was in it." At that point, he moved just south of Newcomerstown to a beautiful
log house.

Traveling Methodist preachers were welcome at his home, and eventually John donated
land to have a Methodist Episcopal Church built on the boundary line of Tuscarawas and
Guernsey County. There was also room for a church cemetery. In 1853, when Early died, he
was one of the first people buried in the cemetery on the west side of the meeting house.

His tombstone can still be found there today.

The story of the Bloody Bible begins before the start of the Civil War and after the death of
John Early. When members of Early's Church came to the log meeting house in early May to
their usual Sabbath School, prayer, and class services, what they found when they opened
the door was forever impressed on their minds.

Sometime since the previous Sabbath, a terrible deed had been done. Someone decided to
mock God by offering a lamb as sacrifice upon the alter of the church. Then they sprinkled
the pages of the Bible with the blood of the lamb causing blood to drip down the alter and
cover the floor. The lamb was still there beside the Bible when they entered.

It was later discovered that the deed was done by three young men called "Sons of Belial"
who met at Whiskey Springs. They liked to play tricks on neighbors and for some reason
especially the Early family. His cornfield had been destroyed, a new plow weecked, and
horses tied to the edge of a cliff so they fell to their death. They later told people they had
stolen the sacrificed lame that was a pet of a young crippled boy in the Early family.

When the young boys did this terrible deed, one young man shouted for John Early to rise
from his grave. A pillar of fire arose in the door of the church and swept down the aisle. One
of the boys was not able to see or speak, had to be carried to his home a mile away, and was
in a stupor for much of his life. The others could barely stand to live with the guilt. But no
charges were filed as the church people agreed, " Vengeance is mine saith the Lord."

The story was first written by Solomon Mercer in the Daily Jeffersonian on April 20, 1899.
He had a personal interest in the story as his father, James Mercer, lived in the
northwestern part of Guernsey County in Wheeling Township. His neighbor was John Early.

Mercer remembered this tale well as he was there when it happened. Everyone was headed
to Sunday School that morning in their best church dress. When they entered the church, the
smell of the killed lamb was so strong that no services were held there that day. Mercer even
remembers his father and another family member carring the lamb between two sticks out
the church door.

For many years, Jim Rogers of Orrville kept the Bible in his home under glass in a special
table he had built. He had received guardianship of the Bible from his wife's aunt. At the age
of 92, Jim wasn't well and asked the Newcomerstown Museum if they would display the
Bible there. It was added to their collection in June of 2020 after being gone from
Newcomerstown for 150 years.
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Evenals Fistory

Everal School Built 1845
Chuwich Sewwvices Stated 1546

Evenal Chapel




 about 30 attendees that the

when John and. Ann Everal it
;migrated to the U iited States:_

they donated a po‘ on of land
‘for a schoolhouse and church.
 dedicated house of worship .
] was erected in 1868, and the
original sohoolhouse was torn [
down in the mlddle of the 20th~ 1
century.
The church was ongmally i
‘under the Evangelical United
Brethren and laterbecame part
of the United Methodist denom-
‘ination. ‘The church building
was given a steeple and moved
onto a basement fmm atio in
1928, v :
| dldn’t attend “church
: there, but it’s a place near and : o
dear to my heart,” Dakin said. ' ‘ b ‘ ; . 'SHAWN DAKIN/SUBMITTED PHOTO
- “Dan said to me acauple 'eeks.'».< Everal s School is seen in 1923; it was tom down Iater inthe century Before having a steeple added in 1928, it
ago: ‘If we don’t ask what canbe  looked more like:a church than Everal's Chapel, which stood on the same property. Worship services ended at the
done, we're going 10 regret  church building in November, and it's in danger of being torn down. A preservation society is being formed to
when we look out acress that. prevent the demolition of the church and turn into a historical site and community building, :
. field and there S o bulding .
there”” =
A deadlme by the dmcese Cie
hasn’t been established for the
i socxety to take over the build-
“ing, said Pastor Eric Miller.

.+ like to see the church used for
" nondenominational church ser-

* vices, family reunions, wed-

: dings and receptions and as a
However, if they are unable 1o  general community building.
dosoina reasonable amount of : e Fees from rental and dues from
-time he said the hapel wotﬁd’ S society members, hopefully,

be demohsheds : : “would be ‘the bilk ‘of needed *
A cemeteryon the land 1s tar- revenue.
. geted torevert to(}xford_’ibwn : Dakin said he has someone
ship for continued: e that would donate slate for re-

mandate has townships respon-- . pairing the roof, which hopeful-
sible for takmg over any ban_ & 1y would drop the estimate for
doned cemeteries. ' that project. Miller said $5,000

The Norma Marmi Preserb. u
vation Fund was established i in
1979 to maintain the cemetery, -

to handle legal fees was arough
figure and that the UMC dio-
cese might be willing to sell for

and the money would go tothe a lesser amount or somehow
township ' for cemetery use & : work with the society.

“only. Funding is for the ceme- = = ; . SHAVN DAKIN/SUBMITTED P oro ~ “What we're trying to do is
:tery only and not the chapel. © s ' ’ make it as simple as possible

‘Discussion was held at a re-

‘ for these guys,” Miller said of
cent community meeting with

the UMC workmg with the soci-
. ety. “What it comes down fo is
the United Methodist Church
B - ‘doesn’t like to see abandoned
S ; properties.”

Everal’s Chapel society »ould'
take on the cemetery too, de-

pending on how suecessfu} itis
with first acquiring the church. cemetery would not be anissue, because of the cost of purchase llhayhur@coshoctontnbune com
Oxford Township frustees but they had been advised by and maintenance involved. - Gl 740-295-3417

sa1d takmg on upkeep of the' " counsel to not buythebu;ldmg ‘ Dakm sald the socxety would : . Twitter: @llhayhurst
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Hartwaod M’ethodzst church.
L located eight miles southeast of;
g Newcomerstown, was completely
. destroyed by fire of unknow
: 8 ng:
y Port Washmgton flremen were
_called to the scene around 4 a
. by a nearby resident who no-
iced the blaze but the fire was
ut of control by ihe time fire-
Fe men ‘arrived.
~ According to Lester Helter as-
~ sistant chief of the ,‘Pcrt Wash-

ington Fire Department cause
of the blaze is unknown. Investi-
gation will continue, Loss was
at least partially covgred by in-
surance, he said.

The all-wooden bmldlng was
located between Route 21 ‘and
County Road 5 /
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(above) The Jerusalem Church in Stonecreek. The -
log building was put up in 1815 ar a cost of
$300. The frame house was built in 1842 for
$700. The brick church was erected in 1877 ata-
cost of $2,000.
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History of Early’s Church

. ..MitcH Wise
" NewcomersTown NEws

. i John Early played a fiddle for country-dances until he
. iwas converted to the Christian faith. Thereafter the fid-
-~ dle was a tool of the devil and Early traded the frolick-
ing country music for songs from the Methodist hymn-
book. ’
i~ . Early was born in 1780 and raised in the hills of
Harrison County. It would be in those hills that he would
.<whear the gospel and surrender his life to the One that
~u.gave it to him. In 1844, at the age of 64, he moved to
».Guernsey County with his wife Catharine. The couple

. had pﬁ;chased a property near the Tuscarawas County °

»_«line and built an eighteen by twenty-four foot log cabin.
The cabin would be the Earlys' home and also served as
. vameetinghouse for worshipers of the faith. As time went
1-;on, Early's congregation grew and a twenty-five foot by
-.._thirty-foot log church was built.
< I John Early died in June of 1853 and was buried in the
«;+ church cemetery beside the only other grave at the time,
,.~that of his recently departed sister.
*.» The death of John Early did not stop the members of
i, the-church and the gospel meetings continued. The con-
- igregation met regularly, worshiping the Lord and
-i preaching the word to the ruthless frontier folk in that
(- area.
- » But there are those for whom the preaching of truth has
. 1o meaning. The demon of alcohol had visited a local
-+ group of men and those men, known to many in that area
-+, as the "Sons of Belial," invited that demonic being into
,, their hearts and minds. To them the gospel that John
-,,~Barly had preached was foolishness.
i1z Early had left behind some family. In the early 1860's
“1,,it was known that a descendent of John Early, a young
crippled boy, lived near the church. Clinton Early was
described as "a poor little fellow, crippled in the legs and
«.rcouldn't walk, but just crawled around the yard and
. iplayed with his pet lamb."
\~«z That poor lamb would play a part in one of the most
. ,hideous sacrileges of that day or any day since. One
. May night in 1863 or 64 the Sons of Belial, actually a
. ‘drunken father and his two, sons, stole the young lad's
-, damb and carried it toward the church. The doors of the
«.ichurch were not built for keeping people out so it was no

problem for the heathens to break in.

The room was divided by a center aisle and at the end
of it was an altar and pulpit made from rough cut lum-
ber. Upon the altar was a large Bible, opened for public
viewing and full of the words for which the Sons of
Belial had no understanding.

The lamb was carried down the aisle and laid across
the altar on top of the Holy Book. A knife was used to
cut the throat of the young lamb. The blood soaked the
pages of the Bible but one verse still shone through the
crimson stain. " Be not deceived, God is not mocked; for
whatsoever a man soweth, that shall he also reap."

The youngest of the brothers, drunken with the wild-
ness of the deed, stood upon the altar and shouted with
his loudest voice, "John Early, come forth from your
grave!"

If not Early, the Lord himself may have answered the
call of that unfortunate son. The men saw a brightness
appear, and they turned to see a pillar of fire in the cen-
ter aisle, advancing toward them.

The men screamed and ran for the door. The youngest
son was dumbstruck and permanently blinded. He could
not speak and had to be carried home. He died a few
years later in the county infirmary. The father drank
himself to death and died a violent death at the hands of
those demons that had controlled his life. The other son
tried to escape his past by leaving the community, but
was later arrested for murder and died in prison.

The congregation was content that God would serve
his own justice and it seems He did just that. The lamb
was removed from the church and services resumed
within a few weeks. *

The church was replaced by a second in 1874. Today a
corncrib stands on the site of the second church. There
is no trace of the first church, which was located just
inside the gates of Early's Cemetery. John Early and his
wife Catherine are buried at the Cemetery. Early's tomb-
stone has been broken in two, perhaps the work of
another that would dare to follow in the footsteps of the
"Sons of Belial."

The "Sons of Belial" are long gone and so are the
wooden structures. But the bloodstained bible is still in
existence today, which proves that God's word does
endure. God is not mocked.

a story of sacrileg




Mitch Wise/Newcomerstown News

Early’s first church was replaced
by a second in 1874. Today a corn-
crib stands on the site of the sec-
ond church. There is no trace of
the first church, which was locat-
ed just inside the gates of Early's
Cemetery. John Early's tomb-
stone has been broken in two, per-
haps the work of another that
would dare to follow in the foot-
steps of the ""Sons of Belial." At
the right is the tombstone of John
Early, who died in June of 1853
and was buried in the church
cemetery beside the only other
grave at the time, that of his
recently departed sister. this
photo shows the headstone of
John early and his wife
Catharine. John early’s stone has
been broken in two.
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Lhe desecration of Early’s Church remains local legend

‘WILLIAM CASTEEL
NEWCOMERSTOWN BUREAU

GUERNSEY — Its been
nearly 150 years since local
residents first heard of the
desecration that occurred at
Early’s Church and the Sons of

Belial being responsible forit.

But the story continues to live
. on through the folklore that
~ seems to be passed through
' each generation of local resi-
- dents.
* The accounts of the incident
appeared in news print as far
back as 1899, being recalled
by Solomon Mercer. He and
his family had resided near the:
Early family, and the structure

that was first known as the

Early?Meetmg House — later
as Early’s Church. In subse-
___quent years, efforts were made
to change the church’s name

\t&an Methodist Church,

but somehow the name of

Early’s Church sustained, and
' remained so until the church
~closed it’s doors nc.arly a cen—
 tury later.

The founder of Early’s
Church, John Early Sr. and
his wife, Catherine, moved
to Guernsey County in 1844,
havmg previously resided
in Harrison County Shortly
after‘arriving in Guernsey
County, the Early’s purchased
land situated just north of the

Tuscarawas County boundary

» line on which they built their

log home, then later provided

~ one acre for a 25- by 30-foot

meeting house (church) and
a family cemetery. Early, a
devout Methodist minister,
later died in June 1853 and
was interred in the family
cemetery that was situated on

.~ the west side of the meeting

house (church). Early was the
second family member to be

buried in the cemetery follow-
ing a sister who had died sev-

. eral years prior.
. Legend said on a beautifu]
- Sabbath (Sunday) morning in

May, sometime in the early
1860s, the church’s members
Wwere preparing to enter the
structure for their weekly wor-

ship when a horrible deed was
- revealed. There on the church’s
. alter lay a slain lamb with the
open Bible undemeath and it -
- was severely splashed with the

slain lamb’s blood. Needless to
say, the members did not have

their worship service that week
+due torthe stench-of theidead

lamb. Instead, they spent the

remainder of the day cleaning
the church and airing it out so
that services could resume the

 following week. Mercer recalls

watching his father remove

the dead lamb’s body from the

church that day, a sight which
he said still remained a vivid
memory many years later. The

church members continued to
restore order to their house of
worship and held services the
following Sunday as if nothing
unusual had occurred.

Shortly after the incident,
church members learned
that a local group of three

- men known as the Sons of

Belial were responsible for
the deceitful act. The Sons
of Belial were known to
frequent a place south of
Newcomerstown known as

Whiskey Springs. There, they -

would while away the hours
gambling, playing cards and
plotting mischief on the neigh-
boring residents of the area,

of main interest was the John
Early family. They reportedly
had destroyed the Early fam-
ily’s corn field, wrecked a new
plow that had only recently
been purchased and later tied
a team of the Early family’s.
horses so near the edge of a

' steep embankment that the

poor creatures fell over the
edge to their death. The Sons
of Belial aiso later 1eportediy
were attributed to the murder
of a local school teacher with
the last name of Hevelow. It
was said that the teacher was
doubtlessly murdered for his
meager pay that he had col-
lected earlier that day. He
was supposedly returning
home from Coshocton that.
same day when he suddenly

disappeared, never to be seen
again. At that time; the main
road between Coshocton

and Newcomerstown, which
was known as Cadiz Road,
passed by the area of Whiskey
Springs. Years later on May.
28,°1859, a skeleton was
plowed up in a field south of
Newcomerstown. Mrs. Dugen,
the sister of the missing teach-
er, immediately was sent for
and positively identified the
skeleton as that of her missing
brother (by the appearance of
the teeth).

Howeyer, the Sons of Belial

gained their greatest infamy
through the despicable act that
occurred at Early’s Church
several years later. The story
states that the group of men
— all drunken from a night of
consuming alcohol — stopped
by the Early family’s farm and
stole a pet lamb of a crippled
child, a relative of John |
Early’s. They then proceeded
to the church, busting down
the door. They placed the lamb
oil the open Bible which lay
on the alter, then slit the poor
creature’s throat with a pocket
knife, it’s blood spilling over
the pages of the Bible. One of
the men approached the pulpit
and in a loud voice calling out
“John Early, come forth from
your grave!” Information gath-
ered from the church’s records
indicate that at that moment, a

surge of fire rolled through the
church’s door, striking the man
dumb and blind. He required
to be carried from the church
as he could neither stand, nor
speak. Some of the church
members spoke in favor of
punishing the desecrators
somehow, but one of the Early
family relatives, who later
became a leader of the Early’s
Church, advised the members
to do nothing. He said the
men had desecrated the house
of God and would surely be
given the wrath of punishment
from powers that were greater
than man could ever give. His
advice was followed.

The story said all three of the
Sons of Belial died without
hope. The youngest man of’
the trio died stone blind in an
infirmary, while another died
such a painful death that he
kicked down his own bed as he
lay dying. The remaining man,
supposedly, later died a pecu-
liar death years later.

The original log church
(which stood where the cur-
rent cemetery is located now)
was torn down in 1874. A
new white painted, clapboard
church was built earlier that
same year just to the north
of the cemetery near the
Tuscarawas boundary line.
The church remained active
for many years, later merging
with the two local Methodist

churches in Newcomerstown, .

The building and surrounding
property, except for the cem-
etery was later sold and even-
tually became the property: of
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Russell.
The aging structure fell into
ruin, collapsing to the ground,
according to a feature that
appeared in the June 20, 1984,
edition of The Newcomerstown
News.

Accounts of Mercer’s story
was also featured in a book
written by a retired Methodist
minister Lonzo Green titled,

“Tales of the Buckeye Hills.”

The original Early’s church’s
blood stained Bible was later

in the possession of a local
Newcomerstown resident

Chester Herbert and was
briefly on display to the public
in . The Newcomerstown News
office’s window during the
August 1964 Sesquicentennial
celebration. Its whereabouts
now are unknown.

* A little known, interesting

fact about the Early’s church
Bible, according to Green’s
feature was that on the page
that was open in the Bible
and became stained with the
lamb’s blood was this verse,
“Be not deceived, God is not
mocked; for whatsoever a
man soweth, that shall he also
reap.” :
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mocked" and that H;s Vegeance

neighhor, Here they snatched 2



Columbus  Dispatch Sunday August 3t 1444
BI ¢oD-SMEARED BIBLE RECALLS. "PILLAR OF FIRE" Lk

THAT BLINDED ITS DESECRATORS 80 YEARS AGO

Newcomerstown, Ohio Aug., 30--It wss a bright Sunday morning in May ani
the followers of Early's church nsar the border line between Tuscar-
~awas and Buernsey counties in eaﬁéef@ Ohlo, were dressed in their ¥go-
to-meeting” clothes, ready for Suflday school. The vanguard of the
little group pushed back the ponderous door of the log structure and
walked in. Together they emitted a gasp., Beside the altar Bible. lay

& dead lamb, its blood had been smeared over the pages an had dripped .«

down the altar on to the floor., Horrified at the sight of the mock
sacrifice, the congregation had to abandon its services--the stench
was too strong. -

Today, this blood~.stained Bible is in the possession of Mrs, Jacob
Herbvert of Newcomeprstown, To aged residents who remember the story of
the "pillar of fire" which avenged the desecration of John Early's
Bible one night in the lonesome Guernsey county hills riearly 80 years
ago, it stands as silent testimony that "God is not mocked" and that
Hls vengeance can be swift amd terrible. "It was the wrath of God ™
that strucik them," said Mrs., Frenk Castor as she rocked in her 0ld-
Fashloned chair on the porch of her home here and recalled the inci-
dent. ™Ine men who did that act were just plain wicked." -

Prelude to tae desecraration, according to crumbling church records,
storted vhen Johm Harly, an itinerate ilethbdist pastor, arrived in the
Cucrnsey count) scttlcment four miles south of ewconmerstovm in the
sorihy of 1840, Fe had boen converted shortly before in nearby liarrie
son county, Althoush home building. and first-cron »lanting in this
commnity Wad loft arnarently little time of inclination for worshi-,
nrly and..a few of ‘the nioneer farmers drevw simmle »nlons for the
churchi . A grove of nonlars aton the hirhest knoll was chosen for the
site. Soon axés flashed in the sunlight, TFinally, the Zarly church,
8 it come to be knéum préccived 1ts last clidngle and ascross the flodr.
vide berms shuffled .tho feet of the first congre;ation. :

NMrs. Castor clearly recalls the log cabin house of worship. I8 -
sturd; clay-filled walls turned sside the mournful hilltop winds ar? -
ltept out the rains' of many years, hough<hewm' lumber floorins formed
sinzle nisle which divided the 25-30 foot -room intd two cqual parts.
The scats, iirg, Castor recelled, were s>lit logms with ncys driven
into them for suphort, 4 notabellied stove uvarméd the interior., "I
ung about eifht years old vhen that terrible thins happened,” the 85. o
vyeor-old widow siid.- Joim Larly had sincc died and his prave stood in
the shadow of the church, - By now tho first seattered few vorshinners
had srowm to a steundch gréowp vho attended services resularly,

p A - L] -
""here was, howover, 'a group of nen:in the community who vere referrcad
to. LY the others as “Sons of Beliel',. ot havine ovportunity, or
pogsibly desire,’ to associate vith the ¢hurch wembers, they often
ric¢iculed the reliprious habits of others, In theevords of larvey
Dull;'QY,‘&nothQ? long~-tine resicent who remembers, them , "They

..



verc as ornery as it was nossible for human beinss to be--up to that-
time,” Oune tine they mulled un fwo rows of corn in a field just to,
have sonething to do. 2*nother time they ticd =z horsc close to tie
edre of & cliff, The ncrse finally slivoed on the ecdre and fell to
its ceath, ns the men calculated it would.

Thio lust "auﬁn lizht h2é been extinzuished one nisght when three of I~
men having “hit the cuss  harder than usual, made thelr ay to the
yaru of a neighbor. Here they snatchcé a pet lamb and then started
for the church. The lamb had been the pet of a little crippled boy.
in the church the intruders carried the bleasting animal slong the
szisle to the altar built by Fastor Early. ﬂhere lay the bible, onen
ané w2itinz Tor the uuldaj morning service. Then the "sacrifice"
bazan, ith little compuigion they slashed the lamb's throat. lood
sniread slowrly across the Dible, Jlot content with this, they cnumbed
throusth the book sumearing blood on the nages as tiey turned them,

e son of one of the other two men was not to be & cecond in evil
deeds. After the dederation a according to a ct surch record, he
mounted the pulpit and in a lcuo vowce chollen *ed Joun HWarly Lo rrisc.
Trom his grave outside, Suddenly the men stood vr"nsflxed.‘ ~elore
the =2ltar 2 "7illar of fire™ srew in brilliance until it blirded the
eyes of iz cvingin; deé%vﬂtoﬁou They threw uo their arns in will
terrur. Screams forced their wuay from fear-sriricd throats cf the
older ueu, Brf the vnu1" nman uko hed shouted the challenge was struck
wumb. 7 ILie cculd neither stend nor ypesk and had o be carried o his
mome, "' states 2 churchn record. The mea’s night of hilasity had turncd
into one of terror. _ ’ '

T2t wasn't the end of their troubles, either, "lirs., Castor recalled.
The young man went 1lind = few ronths later and in a few years Ciec

in an infirmsrr.” The "atﬂsrn described =25 a man of rore Lhrn
erdinavy intelligence, hsd unce been a member of the church but “he
leved kis cuns,"  "le xclj victim to the cuns too, " said iirs. Castor

"dyint s0 hard hut he could hardly be held in bed.” The o*ther
descerator with some commanions, soon left the neighborhood. Two of
the~ wvere lzoter 1m“mlsoned for murder. ”’ews come of the death of
all ¢l *mco,” states a church chronicler, “and they all died without

1. . i3]
lAO‘_'C L

A new chursa reslaced John Barly's first house of worshin, but the
criginal rnorme SBarly’s caurch, had been retsained. The log building

nas lonn been removed from ite hizh kno]l and a frame structure stonds
acrcis the road in Tuscasrawas county. '"he corizincl cemetery stands
rwell tended with its »lain head stone as wcnther-beaten inscrintion.
Only a fow residents of Wawoomerstovm can remember the blood-stained
Bible act. “mong Lhew are ilrs, Pastor, Fr. Dullznd, ilarion iercer a
former nayor of Hewcomerstorm. The Hible is showm to many. nersons
eachh year at the home »f lire, Herbert. On one of its defiled  arnss

it has a ;ussgge that stonds like a warnin;; to all who witness its
desecration: “Be nov decelve, Bou is not mocked‘ fcr whosoever aman
sowetli, that shall he z2lso rean.” Was it ﬂctually a “hlllur of fire”
that struck them? “Ih=ts something we'll never kaow," iir, Dull y
reolied,






History of St.

Jacob’s

éLuthemn Church Given

>, & congregation of St. Jacob’s
iubhevan church, 75 memberts, will
Sfficially become members of St.
Baul’s Lutheran church this morn-
$hg during the worship service.

Z Dr. Herbert Veler, president of
the Ohio synod, will preach.

The congregation of St. Paul’s
accepted the property of St. Jac-
ob’s church, south of Newcomers-
town, on May 2, 1958. This action
was followed by many business
transactions to make the merger
possible on this date.

As far as can be determined,
the early history of St. Jacob's
church began with the seftlement
of some German families about a
mile south of the present church
in the early 1800’s. Why these fam-
ilies settled in the hills instead of
the Tuscarawas river valley is pos-
sibly explained by the fact that
the hill country was free from
plague and malaria that struck
the people in the valley. ,

This community at that time
had three ‘churches, the Zion ME

rch, built of logs on the pres-
site of the Zion cemetery; the
Pleasant View Baptist church,

built of planks, and the Lutheran

church, also a log structure.

This Lutheran church was built
around 1820 to 1825. When this
church became too small the con-
gregation decided to move it from
Union hill to another location on a
better road and nearer the Luther-
an cbmmumty. This new site was

on the old Coshocton-Oadiz road
leading to Pittsburgh. )

Over this road, cattle, sheep,
horses, hogs and even turkeys
veere driven to the eastern mar-
kets. This road was used because
it avoided the necessity of cross-
ing the Tuscarawas river.

The new church was constructed

of planks, had three windows on
each side and the pulpit was high
and enclosed. There were two
rows of seats with benches 10 feat
long. The entire cost of the new
building was $1,207.05. Of this
amount, $907 was pledged by the
members and on the day of the de-
dication of the church the balanca
was donated, making the church
debt free. Rev. G. C. Smith of
New Philadelphia preached the de-
dication sermon and Rev. L. A.
Bush was the pastor of the church.
Joseph Loader directed the build-
ing of this church. The organization
of the church went into effect May
23, 1897, with 25 charter members.
Councilmen were Charles Smith,
William Schlupp, Christian Neider-
hauser, George Loader and Wil-
liam Merbert. Charles Rothenstein
and John Hackenbracht were elec-
ted trustees. On Oct. 20 of that
year they joined the East Ohio
synod and formed a charge with
St. Paul’s in Newcomerstown.
The land for the new church was
donated by Jacob Boltz and the
cemetery ,land was donated by
Jacob Miller. The church was call-

78

ed St. Jaocb’s in memory of thel
two men. l

Members at the time 1nc1uded=
the Hackenbrachts, Filmans, Robh-_l

ensteins, Schlupps, Arts, Neider-
hausers, Millers, Boltz Wolffs, !
Shafers, Harbolds Opphiles Den-:

zers, Schwabs Coles and Widders. !

The bell for the new church was'
purchased from the MP church at
Wolf for $100. The pastor at that
time wwas paid $75 a year.

From the time of becoming a
charge with the Newcomerstown
church, they had the same pastor
who served the county charge on
Sunday afternoons,

The church property includes |
the church, the cemetery and two:
acres of ground and is pleasantly
situated on' top of the hill. The
church has been kept in excellent
condition by tlre work of the Ladies
Aid society. The cemetery is alsol
kept up and a provision to continue |
the care of both has been made.
The Ladies Aid Society will also
continue to function.

The church still has its German
Bible, thea language taught in" the
Sunday school in the early days
of the church, and a pipe organ,
which is still in the church but. notl

+used. l

The program this morning will
also include a dedication service'
for the new Fellowship hall of St.
Paul’'s. A congregational dinner
will be served in the hall at noon
for all members and friends of the
church
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Glasgow

Glasgow

Today one must almost hunt
for Glasgow. Scarcely a
dozen houses remain of the
200 dwellings, the two
churches, the three general
stores and the eight saloons.
The road, branching off
Route 16, three miles east

of Newcomerstown.

PLEASANT VIEW BAPTIST CHUREH

/899



The Country Church

The Birds Run Community Church was or-
ganized in 1898 as The Bridgeville Methodist
Episcopal Church.

When the Methodist Church merged and
became the United Methodist, it became the
Birds Run Community Church, owned and
operated by the people of the Birds Run
community.

Today the congregation has an average atten-
dance of 30 to 40. There are Bible studies, Sun-
day school classes for all ages and a choir.

The pastor is Jim Lee and the music ministry
is coordinated by Mrs. Michelle Lee.

g4

el

The Birds Run Community Church is located in Birds Run,
Wheeling Township, Guernsey County.
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The Country Church

The first Birmingham Methodist Church was
built in 1839. It was a stone structure in the
northeast section of Birmingham (then known as
Milnersburg).

The original structure was used as a church for
32 years. In 1871, a plot of land was purchased
from Robert and Rachel Daugherty for $150 to
relocate the church. The present frame structure
was erected on that site by R. V. Daugherty & Son
during that year.

During the years 1973-1978, the interior was
completely renovated and a frame addition was
added. Over the years the church has been
remodeled to meet the standards of the times.

Today there are 52 members, church services

The Birmingham United Methodist Church is in Monroe Township,  and Sunday school are held weekly. The pastor is
the Rev. Gene Miller.

Guernsey County, in the Village of Birmingham.

Guernsey United Methodist Church.

The country church. . .

The Guernsey United Methodist Church was organized in the
1830s and was known as the Birds Run Bible Society. It also
was referred to as a Methodist Protestant Church. At the time
of its organization, the church was a log structure located north
of Guernsey, at the corner of County Road 33 (North Eighth
Street Road) and Township Road 382 (Zion Road) near the
Guernsey Cemetery.

The existing building was built in 1893 in Guernsey. In 1935
a flood caused three feet of water to enter the church sanctuary,
destroying the books, pews and the organ. ’

There are now 15 members of the Guernsey United Methodist
‘Church and the lay minister is Gary Marlatt of Newcomerstown.

3
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ent site. It was partially remodeled then. In 1962 it was
completely remodeled. In 1969 the parsonage on
McKinley Avenue was sold and the present parsonage
was built.

The church gives to World Missions. In 1951 they
began with a contribution of $400 and now it is over
$10,000 annually. The minister at present is Rev. O.E.
Ghere and he has worked here for thirty-seven years.
Their son is a chaplain for the Army in Honolulu, Hawaii.
Their daughter's hushand is a pastor for the church in
Corona, California.

Over the years many pastors have fed the flock in this
area. They are Rev. and Mrs. Floyd Brock, Rev. and Mrs.
Clare Borman, Rev. Maybelle Reel, Rev. and Mrs.
Eugene Robertson, Rev. and Mrs. Alvin Crawford, Rev.
Virginia Willheight, Rev. and Mrs. Richardson, Rev. and
Mrs. W. Trowbridge, Rev. and Mrs. Russell Menges and
Rev. and Mrs. O.E. Ghere. - Submitted by Rev. O.E.
Ghere,; Written by Doris Baker

Full Gospel Temple Church

The Full Gospel Temple Church was set in order in
July, 1974. It meets in the former St. Jacobs Lutheran
Church building on township road 107 south of New-
comerstown. The present minister is Roger Bourne who
has been with the congregation since 1974. From 1978-
1980 a building program was initiated to modernize the
building inside and out. The original bell is still intact and
rings each church service to let the countryside know it
is time for worship. There is a baptismal service held at
ariver or lake, usually once a year. The church has pic-
nics on the holidays of Memorial Day, Fourth of July, and
Labor Day. Regular worship services are held Sunday
morning. Evangelistic services are held Sunday and
Thursday evenings.

King’s United Methodist Church

Jessie Gardner is the superintendent of the Sunday
School. The present families that attend are those of
Roger Bourne, Tom Bourne, Frank Bliss, Gary Davis,
Burris Gardner, Jessie Gardner, Lewis Little, Tom Mar-
cincavage, lke Meek, Ruth Murphy, Cecil Phillips, Dora
Ann Quillen, Howard Ross, Jessie Thompson, Olive Wil-
liams, and Earl Wines. - Submitted by Roger Bourne;
Wiritten by Doris Baker

Kings United Methodist Church

Kings United Methodist Church is located close to the
center of Oxford Township, Tuscarawas County on
Township Road 107. This church was organized about
1855 when the first structure was built. The present edi-

—

Full Gospel Temple Church

fice stands on the site of the old church building which
was destroyed by fire. It was opened October 23, 1873
with Rev. C. Titus as its first pastor.

The sale of .75 acre from Daniel Anderson to United
Brethren Church was made on November 1, 1860. In
November, 1923, the church trustees bought from Virgil
Stocker an additional 1.93 acre adjacent to the original
tract to be used as an addition to the cemetery and as a
community and picnic ground. In 1931 a .17 acre piece
of ground located below the township road was sold to
a Mr. Cramlet.

According to the original deed, it appears that the
church was first named Mount Pleasant. In 1884 it was
known as the United Brethren Centenary Church. In the
1920’s the name was changed from Centenary to Kings
United Brethren Church. In 1946, with the union of two
denominations (United Brethren and the Evangelical
Church), the name was changed to Kings Evangelical
United Brethren Church. In 1964 the church was official-
ly incorporated. In 1968 our denomination merged with
the Methodist Church and our name was changed again,
Ehtils tirr?e to the present one of Kings United Methodist

urch.

Celebrations in 1953 and 1973 were held for a home-
coming and centennial, respectively, for the local
church. Both were well attended.

Records indicate the following men served Kings
Church from 1884 to the present: W.0. Siffert, 1884-
1888; M.L. Oliver, 1888-1894; R. Watson 1894-1897;
G.W. Grubbs, 1897-1902; M.L. Oliver, 1902-1904; W.A.
Hevlow, 1904-1907; J.S. Jones, 1907-1909; A.E. Grub-
bs 1909-1910; T.J. Roby, 1910-1912; J.S. Jones,
1912-1913; E.R. Bennet, 1913-1914; A.F. Waterman
1914-1916; M.L. Oliver, 1916-1923; M.W. Rafeld 1923-
1927; G. Van Tillbrough and C.F. Thompson 1927-1928,;
W.W. Frank, 1928; T.J. Robey 1928-1931; F.W. Langell,
1931-1935; S.W. Ellis 1935-1939; H.H. Davis 1939-
1944; L.N. Carmony, 1944-1947; J.J. Wagner, 1947-
1951; P.E. Wright, 1951-1954; Ernest Howell, 1954-
1956; Alva Knoll, 1956-1958; George Smith 1958-1961;
Joseph Miller, 1961-1963; Kenneth Reese, 1963-1964;
Paul Baxter, Sr., 1964-1967; Roy Maneely, 1967-1969;
Ralph Dennis, 1969-1972; John W. Wright, 1972-1976;
Dean McElroy, 1976-1983 and Lee E. Fetters, 1983 to
gn?(sent. - Submitted by Mary Welch; Written by Doris

aker

Newcomerstown Church of Christ

The congregation of the Church of Christ in New-
comerstown had its beginning in the late 1890's when
Christians met in homes in the area. As early as 1850,
members were meeting in homes along Buckhorn Creek
just north of the village. A record of the local congrega-
tion meeting was kept when the Yankee Ridge Church
assisted the members under the evangelism of I.H. Pen-
nell of Malta, Ohio. The church began meeting in the
town hall on Church Streetin 1901. The men who assist-
ed most in the establishment of this congregation were

Newcomerstown Church of Christ

the late Mitchell Atkinson, Amos Lynch and Harvey M
Eagon. Soon, a move was made to the Haver Building
and later, to the McCulley Building for a meeting place.
Services were held there until the erection of a building
on the corner of State Street and McKinley Avenue in
1908. At that time, there was a membership of about for-
ty. The congregation worshipped there for fifty-three
years and then built the present place of worship in
1961. At present, there are approximately 140 mem-

bers.

In 1923, J.H. Hines began his work as the first located
evangelist with the congregation. Since that time, such
men as Oliver Johnson, (1926;, Ben S. Thisselle (1926-
1931), Horace E. Taylor (1937), Lewis F. Mills (1940),
Carl Finley 51 940), Kenneth Adams §1 942-1944), Ralph
Bankes (1944-1946), Lawrence Stein (1946-1948),
Wellington Gallagher (1948-1951), Fred Cline (1951-
1955;, David Reppart (1956-1964), Larry Arnold (1964-
1969), Flavil Miller (1969-1973) and Gale Yoho (1974-
to date) have worked with the local congregation.

Peoples Community Church

On February 18, 1839, William I. and Anna Maria Peo-
ples deeded ground for the purpose of building a House
of Worship for members of the Methodist Episcopal
Church. Also included in this deed was ground to be
used for the burial of their dead. The trustees at that time
were Asbury Jones, John C. Evans, William Carter,
Thomas Carter, John Jones, Joseph Smith, Amos Sim-
pkins, Elija Gilpen and William Peoples. The church was
organized in about 1843 and very soon thereafter'a log
meeting house was erected. It was called the Peoples
Methodist Episcopal Church.

Peoples Community Church

In 1857 this church was destroyed by fire, and the
same year a new one was builtin adifferent location. The
membership at this time was about 100 and Rev. L. Tim-
berlake was the minister. On October 19, 1889 an addi-
tional plot of ground was donated by John Booth for
burial purposes. This is known as the new part of the
cemetery.

In 1900 this second church was burned and services
were held in the Booth Schoolhouse until agreement
could be made to build another one. The new church was
constructed on the same foundation during the summer
and fall of 1901. This was accomplished through the
cooperation of everyone in the community, and under
the supervision of John Harding, who also furnished the
lumber. This new church was re-organized on April 6,
1902. At this time the minister was Rev. Schiltz. The offi-
cers were Superintendent — Lonnie H. Meek, Assistant
Superintendent — Charles Couts, Secretary — Clara
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Birmingham

Church celebr

GERALDINE OHDE
BIRMINGHAM: CORRESPONDENT

BIRMINGHAM — Clear Fork Baptist Church will celebrate its 175th an-
niversary on Sunday, Aug. 10, with special speakers, special music, food and
fellowship.

The church is located on Broadhead Road just off Freedom Road near Bir-
mingham, nestled in a valley amid the rolling hills of northeast Guernsey
County.

The celebration will start with a baptismal service to be held at 9:30 a.m. at
a pond on the farm of David and Carol Beal. There will be no Sunday School
and the morning worship will begin at the church at 10:30 a.m., featuring
special music by the Clear Fork Baptist Choir. The morning speaker will be
Dr. C. Jeff Wood, executive minister of the American Baptist Churches of
Ohio from Granville.

A basket dinner will be held at approximately 12:30 p.m. followed at 2
p-m. by another service. Area residents who have been members of the
church for 50 years or more will be honored. The afternoon speaker will be
Rev. William Humphrey, who pastored Clear Fork Baptist Church from
1957 to 1961, along with the Old Cambridge Baptist Church. i

The Rev. James Ohde, the current pastor for almost 15 years, invites area
residents and former members to attend the day’s activities.

The Clear Fork Baptist Church was first established during the early set-
tlement of Monroe Township in Guernsey County. On April 20, 1822, a
small and struggling congregation met as the Clear Fork Regular Baptist
Church, under the leadership of Elder Benjamin Stone, a Baptist minister
- from Redstone Baptist Association of Pennsylvania. For some 20 years, the
congregation worshiped in a plain log meeting house in Birmingham before
moving downstream about 1% -miles and building a new frame building,
which remained in use for 36 years.

In the 1830’s, a church was constituted at Newtown (now Peoli), with
most of the membership coming from the Clear Fork area. This reduced the
size of the Clear Fork Church and its financial income.

In 1851, Rev. T. Jones became pastor, remaining for 21 years. During this
time, he baptized 229 persons and 74 persons were received by letter, making
303 members added to the church. '

The present house of worship was built in 1880 and dedicated debt-free.
Just two years later, however, church records were destroyed in a fire during
the spring of 1882. George T. Jones was appointed chairman of a history
committee and by August the group had compiled a church history, as best
they could. :

A church covenant, constitution and by-laws were adopted on Nov. 4,
1882. Over the next 60 years, a variety of improvements were made. An or-
gan was purchased in 1902, followed by a piano in 1917. A new fence was
also built around the front of the Clear Fork Baptist Cemetery. The present
parsonage site was purchased in 1923. In 1924, a steel ceiling was installed in
the church. The present parsonage was built in the 1940’s.

In the early 1950°s, members discussed building Sunday School rooms,
but because of the proposed Salt Fork Dam and the possibility of flooding,
nothing was done. Around 1960, a furnace room was built on the back of the
church and an oil furnace was installed. In the 1960’s, after Salt Fork Dam
was built and there wasn’t any increase in flooding, the congregation decided
to add six Sunday School rooms and a foyer.

In 1982, the congregation built a “Fellowship Building.” The addition of
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ates anniversary

PASTORAL SCENE

The Clear Fork Baptist Church near Birmingham will have activities

celebrating its 175th anniversary on Sunday, Aug. 10. Photograph by
Mrs. Geraldine Ohde. : ‘

the Fellowship Building opened the door for many community activities to
be held there. Food commodities are distributed, the 50 Plus Club meets
there, and, from time to time, the Rural Neighbors Club and the Birmingham
Homemakers use the facilities. For many years, the Clear Fork Baptist
Church has sponsored the Birmingham Cub Scout Pack and Boy Scout
Troop. Clear Fork Baptist Church and the Birmingham United Methodist
Church also take turns hosting the Birmingham Community Vacation Bible
School. The church also uses the Fellowship Building for their mother/
daughter banquet, annual homemade ice cream social, an annual “Harvest
Supper” and other events.

Families from Clear Fork Baptist Church were instrumental in starting the
Old Cambridge Baptist Church. In 1907, the Clear Fork Baptist Church was
a member of the Northern Baptist Convention, which is now known as the
American Baptist Churches of Ohio. The church is a member of the Cam-
bridge Baptist Association.

“Clear Fork Baptist Church is a small rural church that God has used as a
light house for the community,” said Rev. and Mrs. Ohde. “With God’s help
and guidance, Clear Fork Baptist Church will continue to serve Him, lead
others to His Kingdom and continue to support missions, locally and over-

”
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KINGS UNITED METHODIST CHURCH

Kings United Methodist Church is located close to the center of Oxford Township,
Tuscarawas County, Ohio on Township Road #107. The land for Kings Church and
Schoolhouse was originally part of the Homestead of Richard and Mary King.
According to History of Tuscarawas County Ohio Illustrated 1884 by Warner, Beers &
Co., Chicago, “this church was organized about 1855 when the first structure was built.
The present edifice, 32 x 36 feet in size, stands on the site of the old church building that
was destroyed by fire. It was opened October 23, 1873 with Rev. C. Titus as its first
pastor”.

Sale of % acre from Daniel Anderson to United Brethren Church was recorded in
Tuscarawas County Court House on November 1, 1860 (Deeds — Vol 43, Page 470). This
deed reads, in part, as follows: “Know all men by these presents, that we Daniel Anderson
and Margaret his wife of the County of Tuscarawas in the State of Ohio, in consideration
of the sum of Twenty Five Dollars in kind paid by Benjamin Betts, Wm N. Anderson &
Daniel Anderson Trustees of the United Brethren Church at Mount Pleasant of the County
of Tuscarawas and State of Ohio have bargained and sold.”

In November 1923 the church trustees bought from Virgil Stocker an additional 1.93 acre
adjacent to the % acre church property to be used as an addition to the cemetery and as a
community and picnic ground (Deeds — Vol 195, Page 176). In 1931 a .17 acre piece of
ground located below the township road was sold to Cramlet (Deeds — Vol 213, Page
548). The church presently owns 2.51 acres. According to the original deed, it appears that
the church was first named Mount Pleasant. In 1884 it was known as The United Brethren
Centenary Church. In the 1920’s the name was changed from Centenary to Kings United
Brethren Church. In 1946, with the union of two denominations (United Brethren and the
Evangelical Church), the name was changed to Kings Evangelical United Brethren Church.
In 1964 the church was officially incorporated. In 1968 our denomination merged with the
Methodist Church and our name was changed again, this time to the present one of Kings
United Methodist Church.

Kings Church has been traced back through conference records to 1884. At that time it
became an appointment on the newly founded Centenary Circuit, Muskingum Conference
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ISLETA merHobic T <HYRCH

The original configuration of the "Little White Church"
1858 to 1940



Isleta Methodist Church

The United Methodist Protestant Society was organized around 1830 or 1832 by
Joel Dalby in Moses Morgan's barn, on the south side of CR 9 just west of its intersection
with TR 257, where the first several meetings were held. After the organization,
meetings were conducted in nearby Union schoolhouse. In 1840 a great revial was held
on White Eyes plains.

Some of the charter members were the Moses Mongans, the Joseph Mulvanes, the
John Stouts, the John Mulvanes, the George Leighningers, Catherine Fletcher, Joseph
Evans and Jenkins Whiteside. Some of the first preachers were Mr. Baker, Thrapp,
Stephens, Hamilton and Hissey.

In 1858 the present site was donated by Henry and William Wolfe and the Little White
Church was built by Lewis Combs, carpenter. The high ceilinged, rectangular structure
was heated with two pot-bellied stoves, one on either side of the room. The altar was at
the north end and twin entrance doors at the south. In 1909 the church was remodeled, a
bell installed and the name changed to the Isleta Methodist Protestant Church.

In 1946-47 a basement, coal furnace and kitchen were installed. In 1958 four new Sunday
School rooms and a parlor were added to the north and west sides and a new kitchen, oil-
fired furnace and restrooms installed in the basement. The main entrance was moved to
the north end of the church and the alter to the south. In 1985 the stained-glass windows,
which had been purchased from the Newcomerstown College Street Methodist Church
after it was damaged by a tornado and torn down during the 1950s, and a ramp for the
handicapped were installed.
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Newcomerstown Schools

The first school in the pioneer history of the township was taught by Jacob Miller.
son-in-law of Nicholas Neighbor in 1818 at his cabin north of the river, near the county line.

Another school was said to be taught by Seth Hart in the two room cabin of the Stoffer
family father east along the river in the area of Pilling St.

Two small school houses were in the present limits of Newcomerstown, the first school was
a log school house, which also served as a community center, built about 1820 on the south
side of the old Pioneer Cemetery on Bridge St. on an acre of land provided by
Andrew Creter for half to be a burial ground on the north side and a school on the south.
Another school was on the lot west of the Methodist Episcopal Church.

Between the years of 1825 and 1850 several other small school houses were constructed
in and around the village. The Dame School, a private kindergarten on Neighbor St. In 18486.
Maria Pilling attended school in town, located about where the Presbyterian Church is now.

The parents paid individualy for their childs tuition but only the most elementary
instruction was available. The three "Rs" were the only studies followed and text books
consisted of whatever literature the pioneers brought with them on their journey westward.
The Bible was one of the mainstays of the reading class.

The Union School Building built on College St. was constructed in 1856. It was a two-story
frame building topped with a bell tower. The two rooms on the first floor were used for the
lower grades, those on the second floor for the higher grades. Two rooms were added in
1880. Also in 1880 a class of five students received certificates for completing a two-year
teachers' course. It was later replaced by the East School on the same site in 1898. The four
upper rooms were used as the High School, The first floor rooms were used for grades one
to six. Since there was no auditorium in the Union School or the new East School building,
commencements for the graduating classes were held in other buildings, The first graduating
class was held in the Presbyterian Church on Friday June 2, 1882, Also used for 1883 & 1884
graduation classes. After that until 1924, when the High School on State St. was built, the
stage of the Opera House was used for graduation exercises.

The East School was damaged in 1955 by a tornato and replaced soon after that with a new
buildimg.

Newcomerstown West School was built in 1899 on the S. E. corner of State and River St. It
was later called the Maplewood Elementary School. it was torn down about 1955. In 1957 a
new West Elementary was built on Beaver St. A new High School was built in 1924 on the
S. W. corner of State and River St. In 1968 a new High School was built again on Beaver St.
and the High School on State St. became the Middle School.

In 1951 kindergarten classes were held in the school's annex which was located
behind the State St. High School in a brick house built by John Miskimen in the 1860s
In 1934 there was a Kindergarten School on the first floor behind the Post Office at
116 W. Main St.

WPA Nursery School 118 1/2 W. Main St. 1939

There was a Kindergarten School on Goodrich St. in 1954

Stocker Ridge School in Oxford Township, N. W, corner of Stocker Ridge Rd. and
Dunlap Creek Rd. closed in 1954, students then come to Newcomerstown.
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STARK PATENT SCHOOL — This building was used as a farm shed for many years looked very °
different from the time when children of the neighborhood flocked to ifs doors. The tree in-the

E. STATE RP.

CCHoOL waoD's BLYG.
20 E. CANAL 5T



& z:,

The Times-Reporter :
.. . Sunday, March 31, 1991 A"5
2%+ NEW PHILADELPHIA, 0.

Our readers say:

History of Stark Patent Rd.

To the Editor:

-Joe Mizer’s interesting article about rural road names in the
March 24 Times-Reporter asked, “What could be behind the
naming of Stark Patent Rd. in Oxford Township?”

That road name and the words Stark Patent on a barn on
Mrs. Carl Kaiser’s farm near I-77 are all that are left to com-
memorate Oxford Township’s very real connection with the
Revolutionary War.

In 1801 a grant, or patent as it was called then, was issued by
President Thomas Jefferson to Brig. Gen. John Stark for eight
lots, along with two to his son., Lt. Archibald Stark, for their
military service. Together they comprised 1,000 acres in the
northeastern part of the township.

Unfortunately for Gen. Stark, a exhortation he made to his
hastily assembled New Hampshire militiamen just before the
Battle of Bennington in 1777 resulted in his wife being much
loriger remembered. “There are your enemies, the Redcoats
and Tories,” he shouted. “We must beat them back or tonight
Molly Stark sleeps a widow!”

" The tract, which began at the west boundary of land present-
ly owned by Roger and Angeline George, extends up the Tusca-
rawas River valley beyond I-77 and northward into the hills;
and never was occupied or perhaps even visited by any of the
.Stark family. The area’s most infamous early resident was John
Funston, murderer of the “post boy.” On Dec. 30, 1825, after he
had been convicted and hanged at New Philadelphia, his squat-
ter family claimed the body, took it home and buried it some-
where in the Stark Patent hills.

The property remained intact until 1850 when a right of way
was granted for the Steubenville and Indiana (now Conrail)
Railroad. After that, farmers soon began buying the land and
established a Stark Patent School. The building stood on the
north side of E. State Rd., midway in what is now Booth Acres.

Children of the area attended that school until about 1900
when the district became part of Newcomerstown Exempted
Village School District. In those days prior to yellow school
buses, they rode in a big, black, mud-splattered hack drawn by a
team of horses. '

It is important to caution, in closing, that the county’s rural
residents  who cherish their local history pay very -close
attention now to the names which may be arbitrarily posted on
their roads by well-meaning but often poorly informed public
officials. If protests are not lodged promptly, names of historical
significance may be forever lost. ’

Lois Zimmer Craig,
Newcomerstown




75



PR ERSNSRS sws SR As SR ae - .- /fy‘,./,(‘l...f,..

W . e -




.Postcard, 1909 '!“mﬁﬂ&ﬂ:!:. . Ohvie
igh Siheat Bkt
T . e

:
Vi,

1978

gl

The tornado that ripped through Newcomerstown 50 years ago in the early morning hours of
March 11, 1955, caused major damage to the old East School building. Shown above, the build-
ing sustained roof and upper level destruction and was later razed and a new school constructed
on the same S. College St. site. The new building opened in 1957.
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This picture postcard, courtesy of Joanie Berger of
Newcomerstown, shows Newcomerstown High School long ago.
A postmark date of Jan. 23, 1913, at 4 p.m. was stamped on the
pnostcard. mailed for one cent.
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Postcard c1910
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The old Maplewood School that stood at the corner of State and
River streets in Newcomerstown until it was razed in the 1950s
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» Newcomerstown East Elementary School
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THE POST BOY SCHOOL

The Post Boy School was located in the little community of Post Boy on Tuscarawas County Road 3 - also know,
as Post Boy Road. The building was dismantled and the land where the school once stood is now owned by Clara Morrison

The school closed at the end of the 1944-45 school term and students wer is Mi
P s ¢ taken to Stocker School. Mrs. Lois Miller

7«22 Memory Lane

A

Students attending the Post Boy School in 1942-43 are shown in
the above photo submitted by Reuben Etter, Post Boy Rd.,
Newcomerstown. Pictured are, front row (left to right) Shirley
Walters, Reuben Etter and Roland Walters, and back row, Earl
Etter, Barbara Walters, Wayne Addy, Eugene Addy, John
Morrison, Joann Walters, and the teacher, Mrs. Miller. :
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United Methodist Church also known as the Birds Run Bible Society,
log structure north of Guernsey at the corner County Road 33
(North Eighth St Road) and Township Road 382 (Zion Rd.) near the
Guernsey Cemetery. The existing building was built in 1893 in Guernsey

e " ‘
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THE KINGS SCHOOL

The Kings School is located on Oxford Township Road 107 also known as Kings Ridge Road. The building is still
standing and is owned by the Kings Community Church which is adjacent to the school site. It is used for the annual
reunions of the Oxford Township Schools.

The school closed at the end of the 1947-48 school term, and students were taken to Newcomerstown.

20/
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In 1939-Andeison. schoothouse; : 09
- which had been vacated, was moved
to Guernsey and attached to the
existing school house. Birds Run
School was closed in 1950 so many

of its students were tranferred to Glasgow

Guernsey School, making it

‘necessary to use the township house Today one must almost hunt

as a school room, t00. The old coal for Glasgow. Scarcely a

house, and two outhouses are still ggzeg hﬁie;qri}iaiggf the

. we 8,

Sta;:ldlilgstgd;}; new school, called churches, the three general

Wheeling Elementary School stores and the elgllt saloons.
; ? The road, branching off

opened and had all eight grades until Route 16, three miles east

1972. Although Head Start classes of Newcomerstown.

took place in this building until —
1982, today this building isused as a

Community Center. A place for

square dances, friends of the

community club and Boy Scout

meetings or Halloween parties. Area

residents use the building for family

reunions, weddings, graduation and

birthday parties.

Birds Run, Ohio

On February 5, 1848, Washington Shoff platted a town on Wills Creek which he named
Bridgeville. It is now known as Birds Run. For many years it was an important
community center. In the village in 1943 there was a Methodist Episcopal and a Baptist
Church. There was a general store run by L. D. Carruthers. There was a telegraph office
and a train depot. There was a high school but only for the 9th and 10th grades.

After this most young people rode the train info Cambridge to finish their education.
It cost them about $6.00 per month train fare to ride to Cambridge.

There was also a two story grange hall. Ice Cream socials were held in there. Forney and



Irish Ridge School 1895 — Mrs. Clara DeVault of 20585 Wayland Drive, Southfield, Mich., furnished the picture of Irish
Ridge School taken about 1895. Jasper Neel was the teacher. First row, ! to r, Mary Couts, Florence Neel, Lousi Little, Clem-
ent Eckelberry, Fred Braniger, Ernest Hursey, Orville Kimble, Emmett Hazlett. Second row, Charlie Braniger, Hugh Lytell,
Joe Lytell, Lonnie Little, Alta Eckelberry, Clara Hazlett. Third row, Lola Little, Joseph Kennedy, Maggie Middleton, Netta
Neel, Manada Braniger, Elizabeth Little, William Eckelberry. Fourth row, William Kennedy, Mabel Frame, Lanie Couts,
Cora Neel, David Lee Fisher, Wood Kimble, Top row, Jasper Neel (teacher), and Faran Couts.

Milnersville School,
Dist. No. 5, Monroe Tp.,

Guernsey Co., Ohio,
E S
SEPT. 19, 1904-- MARCH 17, 1905
F N |

Presented by
MARY UMSTOTT, Tsaches.

S8 2
SCHOOL OFFICERS
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The Clear Fork one-room school was built on land granted to
the Monroe Township Board of Education by the late George
M. Aikin, with the provision that the land revert to him or to
whoever owned the adjoining property when the school was no
longer to be in operation.

Clear Fork School was located about midway between Odell
and Birmingham, and just north of it was the Clear Fork United
Presbyterian Church which no longer exists and the Clear Fork
Beptist Church is approximately one-half mile to the east. The
school and the churches were named after the Clear Fork Creek
which flows through the valley nearby.

I, Kenneth Aikin, son of George M. Aikin, was a student for
eight years at this school, as were my older sister and brother. I
also returned to the school in 1931 as a 19-year old teacher and
I have many fond recollections of my experiences as a pupil and
a teacher there.

Many teachers were a part of Clear Fork School, many of
whom I did not know or remember, but I will name the ones who
were my teachers during my time as a pupil. They are: Hattie
Bell Montgomery, Mabel Aikin Neel (my sister), Pearl Gibson
Scott, Edna Cowden, and M.G. Fisher.

The school was closed in the 1940s and the building moved
away, so nothing remains except the many pleasant and happy

memories shared by former pupils and teachers. )
Kenneth Aikin
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THE STOCKER SCHOOL

The Stocker School was located on Tuscarawas County Road 4 near the Arch Bridge over I-77. The road is known
as Stocker Ridge Road.

In 1948 this school was made into a 3 room school. The school closed at the end of the 1953-54 school term ang

the pupils were transported to Newcomerstown. The building was then used as a community center where square d
and other types of entertainment were held. 5 e

Stocker School became a consolidated school in 1948. Some of the other schools closed that year, and those students
were sent to Stocker School. Two extra rooms were built on at that time. The name was changed to Oxford School.
Esta Hart  taught the first three grades, Clara Beal taught 4th and 5th, Harry McFadden taught 6th, 7th, and 8th grades.

THE MUDSOCK (Bernice, Albany) SCHOOL (District No. 2)

- . ¢ 4 4f
On June 30, 1890 Thomas and Phocbe Grewell sold a parcel of land 16 the board of education for the surm of $100
for a location on which to build a schoolhouse.

The Mudsock School was located in the hamlet of Bernice on Route 21 south of Newcomeritowsn, Ohio

The school closed at the end of the 1929-30 school term and the pupils were transfersed to the Hartwood School,
the eighth grade to Newcomerstown. Mary Frazier was the Jast teacher. The building was dismantled.

The last pupils to attend the Mudsock School, September 2, 1929 to April 18, 1930 were:

Thelma Shurtz (1st gr.), Frederick Raines (1st gr.), Dennis Craigo (2nd gr.), Norma Dorsey (2nd gr.), Mary Jane

Craigo (3rd gr.), Earl Quillen (3rd gr.), Twila Raines (4th gr.), Merle Dorsey (5th gr.), June Kees (5th gr.y, William
Dorsey (6th gr.j, Richard Stoffer (6th gr.), Willard Bond (7th gr.), Willis Craipo (7th gr.).

Eighth Grade to Newcomerstown: Geraldine Casteel, Lewis Craigo, Paul Curby, Robert Stoffer.
Some of the carly teachers were: 1.1, Murphy, Clara Blair, Alma Kees, Mary Frazicr,
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WOLF SCHOOL 1911-12

o

I

THE WOLF SCHOOL (District No. 2)

The land for the school was obtained from John Chapman and others on April 1, 1885. The new building was to
be completed n 1901,

The schoolhouse was located across the railroad track, on the left side and contained two rooms with a moveable
partition separating the rooms. The partition had felt sides and bottom to make it more sound-proof.

The dutics of one of the carly teachers in the high school called for him to supervise the Township Sub-district schools
as well as perform his own janitorial work for a pay of $65 per month. The school was closed in 1930 and the pupils
were transferred to Newcomerstown. The building was sold and dismantled.
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BOOTH SCHOOL

THE BOOTH SCHOOL

The old school building was Jocated at the foot of Ella Fenstermaker’s hill near the present I-77 overpass. The teachers
were Ernest Hogue, Violet Black and Addison Hursey.

The new school was erected in 1889-90 on top of the hill at the intersection of County Road 3 and Township Road 4.

School was discontinued in May 1948, Clara Beal was the last teacher. The building was later sold to Merle Opphile
who converted 1t into a dwelling.



PLEASANT VIEW SCHOOL
CHURCH ROADP ~TWwWP RD /07

THE PLEASANT VIEW SCHOOL
{he Pleasant View School was located near the intersection of Oxford Township Roads 107 and 108. The road mow
Dears the name Church Road.
The building is no longer standing. It is the site of two trailer ho es. One half of the is owned cagan Clark
and the other halt' is owned by Edith Norman. - . b .
The school closed at the end of the 1945-46 school term. The building burned after being struck by lightning.
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BROWNING SCHOOL
RDU‘!’E 2! souTH OF NEWCOrgRsTOWN
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THE BROWNING SCHOOL

The Browning School was located on State Route 258, just east of the I-77 overpass. The building is still standing
fut it has been converted into a dwelling which is owned by Dwain Sanders.

The school closed at the end of the 1941-42 school term.

BROWNING SCHOOL




- GLASGOW SCHOOL ca. 1895 —o ot AN

ONT ROW fich ta rinkit WMEIL - . ae .

THE GLASGOW SCHOOL (District No. 10)

The school building was built as a Catholic Church and when hard times came it was furnished and used as a school.
The school closed about 1921 and Mr. Riggle transported the students to Port Washington in an old Buick.



THE LICK RUN SCHOOL (District No.3)
On June 26, 1838, John Scott was paid $5 for land on which to build a school.

The Lick Run School was located in the southwest part of Salem Township on County Roar
Property.

When Lick Run School closed, the building was sold, dismantled and erected on the Oliver

LICK RUN SCHOOL 1922
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CENTENARY (Stocker) SCHOOL
(No Information was available for this picture)

THE CENTENARY (STOCKER) SCHOOL (District No. 6)
On July 7. 1883 Andrew P. Stocker sold a parcel of land for a school site. A new building was erected, and com-
pleted on September 9. 1887 at a cost of $784. The structure was 12 feet high, 36 feet long, and 26 feet wide. It wag
located on Salem Township Road 22 in the southeast corner of lot number 33. The old building was sold for $19.5¢

[he school was closed in 1926 and the pupils were transported to Port Washington in a horsedrawn school byg
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GILMORE SCHOOL

THE GILMORE SCHOOL (District No. 7)
On May 3, 1854, James Treacle, for $11 sold land, lot 51, to the Board of Education on which to build a school building.

The board members were Brice Blair, John Woodard, Hugh Smith, James Finney, John Richards, John Murphy,
and John Miller.

On April 16, 1885 lots 70-71 in Gilmore were sold by Abraham Schneider for $100 to the Board of Education for
2 new school building.
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MARTWOOD BCHOOL

i R

THE HARTWOOD SCHOOL (District No, 3
On November 13, TREE the sehool direston bought w paet of Jor TR range 2, township 5, gquarter township 2, from
Thorston Mebee Tor a fee of 520 and the tight 10 wee o spring for water on the west side forever. Later, May 27,
1901, Jammen HHE sobd 136 acres 1o the sehonl for $1 1830, The svhool war loeated on Township romd #126 near the
Hartwood Chareh, ’
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NEWTOWN SCHOOL

THE NEWTOWN (Peoli) SCHOOL (District No. 1)

On August 24, 1835 Johnathan Hoge, for a fee of two dollars, granted to the school directors, David Miller, Michael
Tidrick. and John Hudson. a 99-year lease for a plot of land on which to build a schoolhouse. At the end of 99 years
the fand was to revert to the original farm.

The Newtown School was a two-room building which stood along Route #258 west of Newtown (Peoli) in the vicini-
v of the home of Denton T. {Cy) Young. This was the first recorded school district in Washington Township.

Some of the teachers were as follows: D.K. Taylor, Charles Hormell, Price Taylor, Clarence Hursey, Edna Cowden,
Ruth Garwood, Mary Foster Wyrich, Mary Frazier Phillips.
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THE KAIL SCHOOL (District No. 9)

Adam Kail sold the land for the school on April 12, 1852. In 1913 school was discontinued and the pupils transferred
to the Wolf School.

Mr. A.C. Stocker purchased the school building on June 22, 1916.




BUNKER HILL SCHOOL 1912

THE BUNKER HILL SCHOOL (District No. 11)

The Bunker Hill sub-district was established August 1894. A nearby hill was called *‘Bunker Hill™", hence the n;u‘n‘c
Jf the school. Jacob Porcher sold the land for $75. Gutinsohn & Company of Gnadenhutten w.ns‘uwnnlcd th# .UW,“? :1
on his bid of $640.50 to erect the building, using the same specifications as for the No. 6 building. He was aw ,,frh:
on additional contract to build a coal house and two privates at proper places in the school yard on his bid of $35.

Martin L. Neff was the first teacher at Bunker Hill. He received $1.80 per day which included the janitor work.

The school was closed at the end of the 1925-26 school term and the pupils were transferred to the Pofl Washington
«chool. The building was sold to Herman Ruppenthal in May 1928. The schoolhouse is now a dwelling.



THE GLENWOOD SCHOOL (District No. 8)
On February 2, 1837 David Morris transferred land to the school directors for the first Glenwood School.

The following information is from an article in the Newcomerstown News, Wednesday, June 18, 1980. It was writ- |

ten by Iris Fruchey with information furnished by Marian Murphy.

The Glenwood School was built in 1898 for the sum of $659.65. It housed the first eight grades of children of the
area farmers. An architectural oddity of the building was a small open slit above each window. It was felt then that
fresh air was an absolute necessity for good health, so many schools were designed with these openings to let in fresh
air. Of course, the air was coming in around windows and doors and in the winter, students often felt they had more
fresh air than they could tolerate.

Mrs. Claude Mizer (Jesse Mae Mizer) was one of the school’s teachers. After her marriage, she and her husband
built a house adjoining the school property and later *‘boarded’” school teachers. (Editor’s note - Jesse Mae celebrated
her 100th birthday in August 1991.)

Wayne Mizer, son of Mr. and Mrs. Claude Mizer attended the school until he was a sixth grader in 1930. The school
was then closed and pupils began attending the Newcomerstown schools. Wayne recalled that a young student nearly
drom near the school while playing hide and seek. The youth jumped into a stone culvert and a large stone fell
on him, pinning him in the water. His cries brought the other children running and he was freed.

The old Glenwood School building which was located on County Road 19, collapsed and fell on June 3, 1980. A
8Toup of neighbors in the area formed a clean-up party and removed the rubble in a matter of a few hours. Now the
Glenwood school is nothing more than a memory.

A "

GLENWOOD SCH
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The Pleasant Valley School became a part of the Salem-Washington Local School District in 1949. In 1952 the school
was consolidated into the new Washington Township School. Ruth Ripley and Esta Hart were the teachers at this time,

s

oy

PLEASANT VALLEY SCHOOL

THE PLEASANT VALLEY SCHOOL (District No. 5)

On January 19, 1838, John Hudson and John McFadden on a 99-year lease transferred land to the schoel direcion
}.M. Honnold and Jacob Miller, for school use.

On September 30, 1890, Thomas McFadden sold one acre of land for $100 to the Board of Education: Henny Woodan
Josiah Murphy, McKenzie Young. John Peoples. David Peoples, Theodore Lanning and John P. Woodard

The Pleasant Valley School operated until the district was annexed to Port Washington. Washington Towship Grange
purchased the school property and later sold an acre of the land to the Washington Township Trustees whe but
Township Hall there. The schoolhouse is still standing (1992).

According to the *‘Goal’’ by the Gnadenhutten School 1925, a subscription school was established at Pleasant b 2o
in 1825. In 1830 the township was organized into five districts. The first schoolhouse was built in district No %, knows
as Pleasant Valley. Neldrew Weeden was the first teacher. Some of the other early teachers were. Alfred Boldw =
H.M. Anderson, William Spooner, John W. Right. and Isaac Couts. The salary paid these teachers reached as hg”
as $10 per month, for a twenty-six day month.

In 1852 the first log school building was replaced by a more modern frame building. In 1889 a resolution was passe
by the Board of Education to establish a High School at Pleasant Valley. The first teacher in the high school was L os
Murphy. £

Some of the early graduates of the high school were: Prof. H.L. Rietz, Dr. J.R. McFadden. Dr. B.1_ George. R¢
O.M. Peoples, Rev. H.L. Peoples, and Dr. J.A. Hagan. ;
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SANDS SCHOOL March 19, 1912 (Corday Latham, Teacher)

THE SANDS SCHOOL (District No. 4)

Amdrew B Sands on April 11, 1881, transferred land for the Sands School. The school was discontinued in 1920
and the pupils were assigned o the Glenwood School.
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THE MANSFIELD HILL’S SCHOOL (District No. 1)

No specific location for this school has ; k|
. Wmtsot::d In the History of Tuscarawas County by Mansfield 1884, p.
o;;};e Salem Tract east of the river. In 1824 he pm'i\:a::;r:was Valley in 1806, and leased land in the southern pﬂi?
‘ 3 i 1 - - . ; . y
Charles Hill, brother of Jesse came about the same t;’;:m:; a:;d th::Ot n;cr where he lived until his death in

On the basis of this information
10 Glasgow, it is believed that the school w:m locawdm 139;‘:;: el s e e o
3 c i

d

THE BETHEL SCHOOL (District No. 5)

old to the Board of Education by William Heister on June 14, 18y
’ =

The Bethel building was erected on fand §
o Tuscarawas County Road #21. The lot was near the cemetery

iocated near the present Decker home 0O
¢ the end of the 1926-27 school term and the pupils were transferred t

; : ! 0 Stone
Floyd Fillman puchased the building and moved it. ne Creek. The

W3as
The school was closed @
1and reverted to the Robert Dietrich property.

Soard minutes of October 12, 1901 noted that Lewis Buss whitewashed the interior of the schoolhouse for §
se for $3.00.
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THE CAPPEL SCHOOL (District No. 4)

fhere was a school on the Henry Skaer farm a short distance west of Gilmore. This school was closed in 1904.

on March 1, 1839, M()rgli«';Pi Davidson sold one-half acre of land for a school building, Cappel 4, for $5. NW 4,
st twp., R. 2, Military district.

THE HAUPERT SCHOOL (District No. 7)

School was Jocated in the northeast corner of Salem Township on Township Road No. 262. The land
The Haupert 1 was purchased from John Knight on May 11, 1846.

choo :
e Sl was closed in June 1917 and the pupils were assigned to Bunker Hill School and to Port Washington.
00
The sch 12, 1923 the Haupert Schoolhouse was sold to Clyde Cramblet for $105.00. The bell was sold to E.B.
On May 12
Schwab for $300
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